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West Tower, Shun Tak Centre
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LV 2 1]

2010
.
July — August 2010 The Group started to participate actively in the acquisition of the residential property

in Hong Kong. The Group purchased a few residential units in Taikoo Shing for
investment and rental purposes, and believes that the acquisition would generate
stable rental income, thus providing capital appreciation potentials.

—Z-ZEFLHA-\A AEBRIGEHR2EBEATENEETNFE - AEREBAKNLGHE TEEEEMIERE
Rz B THEEKREEERBEESBALREERBEZES -

12 November 2010 The Group disposed two office units located at Shun Tak Centre for a total
consideration of HK$70 million to lock in gains from appreciation in values in the
midst of highly positive market demands for prime office space. The disposal enabled
the Group to embark on future business development should the opportunities arise.

—E-ZF+—-A+=H FEMETISARY REREEREMTANGR ASEUNEKLTELHELNER
ROZMAEME -MEFRARERSRIERREBERZA -

2011
gl
April = July 2011 The Group tapped into the Hong Kong residential property market by acquiring two

more residential units in Taikoo Shing for investment and rental purposes.

—E——FMmMA-tA AEEBEREEEESMEMESMESMEAGRECEMERERKE LA -
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN
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Letter from the Chairman

3 R

Dear My Fellow Shareholders and other Stakeholders:

The year 2011 hastily went by. This year, the US economy purpose
of expected economic recovery was not achieved despite the
implementation of the second round quantitative easing monetary
policy. Furthermore, the problem of European debt crisis was
still in its sixes and sevens situation and had even showed signs
of further deterioration. Therefore, 2011 was actually a difficult
year for the extremely opened economies like Hong Kong and
Macau. However, as Hong Kong and Macau are supported by the
strengths of Mainland China and benefited from its continuous
stronger economic growth, hence, the economic performance of
both Hong Kong and Macau are though difficult but still relatively
sound when compared with other regions. As the different
businesses of the Group are all focusing in Hong Kong and
Macau, hence, it is inevitable that their performance were affected

by the economic performance of the two regions.
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN
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PROPERTY INVESTMENT BUSINESS

In respect of the property investment business, other than the
aforementioned objective economic impact arising from the
international macroeconomic environment factors, both the
governments in Hong Kong and Macau had launched a series of
measures last year to combat the overheating property market
and tightened the credit correspondingly. These policies had
brought negative impact to the property markets. Such impact
was apparent especially in the latter half year, with the overall
performance of the property market obviously inferior to that in
the past in terms of trading price or volume, in particular in the
residential property market. As mentioned in the interim report of
the Company, as the Group's property portfolio is more focused
on the commercial and retail markets, the impact that arose
was relatively insignificant. However, owing to the lack lustre
performance of the residential market which triggered the transfer
of some funds to the commercial and retail property markets,
and augmented by the observing and reluctant to sell attitude
of vendors, hence, the price of relevant properties continued to
maintain at a high level, which was also the main reason that the
Group was unable to further acquire relevant properties in the

market last year.
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Looking forward into 2012, the economic situation is still not
optimistic with the economic situation in Hong Kong and Macau
still being affected by external factors. In addition, in the Fifth
Session of the Eleventh National People’s Congress, in the state’s
working report prepared by Premier Wen Jiabao, it was the first
time to mention that the future economic growth of Mainland
China will be maintained below the 8% level. This has implied
that the economic growth of Mainland China will slow down
moderately in the near future, in which it will directly affect the
economic performance of both Hong Kong and Macau. As the
business of the Group is property investment with the foundation
established in Hong Kong and Macau, meanwhile, the relevant
revenue is relatively stable. While the economy may slow down in
the short run and is trying to seek the direction, we may identify
more suitable investment opportunities therefrom. However,
all the moves must be determined based on actual economic
conditions that are going to develop, and the critical factors are
whether the debt crisis in Europe could be soon properly and
effectively managed, the real economic growth conditions in

Mainland China and the credit policy of the financial systems.

FINANCIAL RELATED BUSINESS

During the past year, the Group strenuously investigated to
expand into the financial related business, and as mentioned in
our interim report, we hoped to expand the securities agency
market in Macau. However, for various reasons, we were unable
to achieve significant progress in developing the Macau market
in the past year. However, as we are still in full confidence in this
market, hence, we will strive to double our efforts in developing

the Macau market in the coming year.
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LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN
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HEALTH AND BEAUTY BUSINESS

During the past year, one of the greatest challenges that affected
our health and beauty business was the Minimum Wage Law
implemented by the government which came into effect on 1 May
2011. After the implementation of the ordinance, the Company
paid the minimum wage to all relevant employees according to
the relevant requirements, in which it had undoubtedly led to
an increase in operating costs. Nevertheless, as the Group had
already been in full preparation on this, we adopted a series of
counteracting measures in controlling other expenses and also
on price adjustment, as a result of which the impact of minimum
wage implementation was reduced to the minimum. Turnover and
profit of this segment in 2011 only slightly decreased by 2.2%
and 6.8% respectively as compared with that in 2010. Looking
forward into 2012, one of the greatest challenge that we are
facing is the expiration of the lease of our operating venue in early
2013. With the expected increase in rent, we must strive to work
harder in our cost control works and develop new income source

to maintain an on-going stable performance in this segment.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the past year, the Group continued to adhere to the two
missions of caring for social groups and promoting environmental
protection. We were being awarded as a “Caring Company” by
the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the third successive
year and fully devoted ourselves to implement the works in
“Energy-Saving” and “Exhaust Emission”. In the Hong Kong
Award For Environmental Excellence in 2011, the Group was
also awarded the Certification of the “Class of Excellence”

for the two main categories in “Energy-Saving” and “Exhaust

Emission”. Regardless of the economic situation in future, we
will always endeavour to uphold a high standard of corporate
social responsibility and endeavour to fulfill our corporate citizen

obligations.

Finally, on behalf of the board, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt thanks to all staff and the
management for their dedicated hard works and contributions
to the Group in the past year, and | would also like to express
my greatest gratitude to our shareholders, customers, business
partners and other stakeholders for their support and trust. In
the future days, we will do our best to continue to work with our
partners to strive to develop the business of the Group for further
development and sincerely hope that the management and staff
will work under one mind and work together whole-heartedly in

creating our promising future.

With my deepest and sincere regards,

TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel
Executive Chairman
Hong Kong

27 March 2012
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Y 25 4k 2
2011 2010 Variance
—E——-F —ZE-ZF =R
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
BT T ¥ I Bkt
(Restated)
(&E5)
Revenue Wz 27,456 27,709 -1%
Profit attributable to wmEA
the owners FEAS 3 F 7,862 33,862 -77%
Basic earnings per share BREKRAF
(HK cents) () 2.64 11.38 -77%
Diluted earnings per share ER#E SR
(HK cents) () 2.61 11.08 -76%
Total equity IR A 48 58 337,806 333,771 +1%
Net assets value per share BREEFE
(HK dollars) (BHT) 1.13 1.12 +1%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e Tig

OPERATION REVIEW

General Performance

During the year under review, the Group delivered a net profit
of approximately HK$8,540,000, representing an decrease of
approximately 75.3% over last year. This is mainly attributable
to decrease in valuation gain on investment properties from
approximately HK$51,991,000 in 2010 to approximately
HK$21,563,000 in 2011. The Group's turnover decreased
slightly by approximately 0.9% from 2010 to approximately
HK$27,456,000 in 2011 while the gross profit was increased
0.2% to HK$18,813,000.

The profit this year was mainly attributed to the gain from
revaluation of investment properties of approximately
HK$21,563,000.

Increase in high yield RMB deposit leads to increase in bank
interest income as a result of which other income increased by
49% to HK$1,757,000. Administrative expenses increased 3.1%
to HK$28,209,000 this year.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group's net asset value was
approximately HK$337,806,000 and net asset value per share was
approximately HK$1.13. The Group’'s total assets and liabilities
were HK$429,474,000 and HK$91,668,000 respectively.

12 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

e Y e g

ERRR

R EIEEF A - 285 B BRAS 45 N 48 858,540,000
TEEERILHNTIS 3% N ETERK
EMEZHBERGH_ZE-—ZTF2HEE
51,991,000 BV &2 T — —F 2 4B
21,563,000 AT - AREBER T ——F 2
R ) E A 27,456,000 BT — &
FEBUR D 490.9% + 1 EFIEHN0.2% E B
18,813,0007T °

FARAZGFNDEEZHRFARBREMEZE
BEHUW L EHE21,563,0007T °

B R e AR IFZUE INBUE R TR E A
AN Z H A U A K N49% = 75 #51,757,000
TC > AT X h13.1% & 45 #28,209,000

JC °

MN-E——F+-A=+—HB AEFBZEE
SFE#)EB%337,806,0007T ' FREEFELD
RBABBIIBT - AEBREERARBD RIES
H#429,474,0007T K& B %91,668,0007T ©



\ m\

L N D SN

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property Investment Business

Year 2011 was a year full of volatility in the global financial
markets largely due to the recent European sovereign debt crisis
and the sluggishness of US economy. Furthermore, both the
Mainland Chinese Government and Hong Kong SAR Government
have imposed various regulatory measures to cool down the
property market so as to curb speculative activities and to ensure a
healthier development of the real estate market. As a result, even
though property market in Hong Kong remained active during the
first half 2011, both property prices and sales volume have been
adversely affected since the latter half of the year. Under such
market environment, the Group closely monitored the market
situation and stayed vigilant while being very cautious in making
investment decisions. During the year, the Group acquired two

residential properties with total cost of HK$15,207,000.

The Group's existing portfolio in Macau comprises an office
premise and a retail shop both located at prime central area of
the city, were acquired to provide stable and promising income
to the Group. HK$1,682,000 of rental income was recorded in
2011 which increased approximately 11.2% from the year before.
There was 85.3% increase in rental income from new letting of
the retail shop when the old tenancy agreement expired during
the year. This increased the yield on retail property investment
to approximately 7%. The average yield on Macau property

investment is approximately 5.6%.

The Group's property portfolio in Hong Kong comprises one block
of boutique hotel situated in Shuang Wan with 47 rooms and 4
residential units in Taikoo Shing. Rental income of approximately
HK$5,336,000 was received in 2011 with investment yield
approximately 4%. In anticipation of continual rental growth
for prime shopping centres and high street shops in 2012 as
many international retailers are eager to expand in Hong Kong
to tap into the China market, the Group is confident to be able
to capture strong rental growth rates for either renewal or new

letting of the hotel tenancy on its expiry this year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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By year end 2011, the fair value of investment properties
increased by approximately HK$21,563,000, as compared with
that of HK$51,991,000 the year before. Despite the slow down
in the accelerated growth of property prices, retail rent continued
to rise during the year on the back of a robust retail market
since the economic rebound in 2010. The continued rise in retail
spending supported principally by Mainland China tourists has
led to a surge in demand for retail spaces. Notwithstanding the
high inflationary economic environment, the Group believes Hong

Kong's property leasing market can have a steady growth.

Health and Beauty Business

In 2011, the health and beauty segment continued to be a stable
and healthy contributor of returns to the Group. With persistently
adopting the policy of tightened control on operating expenses,
the Group successfully maintained its total operating cost at about
the same relative level as in 2010 despite the rising labour and
material cost, in particular, the cost impact after the enactment of
minimum wage on a typically labour intensive business with many
employee trainees used to earn below average wages by historical
norm throughout the industry. For the year under review, turnover
of this segment amounted to HK$14,891,000, representing a
decrease of 2.2% as compared with 2010 while the segment
profit decreased by 6.8% from HK$1,992,000 to approximately
HK$1,856,000.

Other Business Segments

As new account executives joined the Group during the year
and hence increased the business volume, turnover from the
stock brokerage business segment in 2011 increased by 30.1%
to HK$3,756,000 as compared with the year before. Segment
profit was approximately HK$893,000, representing an increase of
300.4% as compared with HK$223,000 in 2010.

Money lending activities manifested steady growth during 2011.
It recorded a turnover of HK$1,791,000, representing a further
increase of 9.3% over the previous year. Segment profit was
HK$1,584,000 as compared with HK$1,431,000 in 2010.

14 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a cash and
bank balance of HK$106,612,000 and net current assets
of HK$62,864,000. The current ratio (calculated as the
current assets to the current liabilities) of the Group as at
31 December 2011 was approximately 1.83 (31 December
2010: 2.11). The Group maintained a healthy working
capital position during 2011.

The sales and purchase of the Group are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The Directors consider
that the Group’s exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates

was minimal.

During the year, certain investment properties of the
Group were pledged to three banks to secure the bank
borrowing of approximately HK$61,256,000, which is
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and bearing interest at
floating rate. Neither the Company nor the Group had any
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2011 (31
December 2010: Nil). The Group had capital commitments
of approximately HK$531,000 as at 31 December 2011 (31
December 2010: Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital Structure of the Group
As at 31 December 2011,
of HK$337,806,000, HK$46,000 of fixed rate liability,
HK$61,256,000 of floating rate liability and HK$30,366,000
18.13% and
8.99% of the Group's total equity respectively. The gearing

the Group had total equity

of interest-free liabilities, representing 0.01%,

ratio (calculated as the total long term loan to the total

shareholders’ equity) of the Group as at 31 December 2011

SEEXRER
RZE——F+=ZRA=+—H X5H
2 KB R AN 55 B 75 #5337,806,0000T 0 E
BE®K A B46,0000T F BEH LE
BAEH 9 5l &5 %61,256, 00075&;%-5’%
30,366,0007 " th A EER A ER B
L5 BIA0.01% > 18.13% LA }28.99% E"
—E——F+-A=t+—RA AE@EzE

was approximately 1.74% (31 December 2010: 1.92%). EAGELE (URRBAEREBRER
At B)NA1.74% (ZT—TF+=A
=+t—H:1.922%) -
lll. Employment Information n. EEER

As at 31
approximately a total of 47 employees (2010: 51). The

December 2011,. the Group employed
Group's emoluments policies are formulated on the
performance of individual employee and are competitive in
the market. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the

total staff costs (excluding Directors’ emoluments) amounted

RZE——F+=ZRA=+—H X5H
EEBIBHEARITIE(ZT—TF 51
Z) o AEBEHMEEKTDBREMERE
Tzeehslsl EmHELLEEHFE -
BHE_T——F+_A=+—RHIF
E-#EIRA(KRAEEZTHH) E

to approximately HK$8,700,000 (2010: HK$9,185,000). 75 5 498,700,0000T ( —Z — T 4F B #K
9,185,0007T) °
IV. Final Dividend Iv. RERE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final EFETEBREHE_ZE——F+=H
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil). T —HBLEFEZREARE(ZE—F
Fofm)o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

Following the downgrade of US credit ratings during the year
and the on-going debt problems in Europe, the uncertainty over
the outlook for the global economy has been mounting. Indeed,
the current debt crisis will unlikely be permanently resolved in
the short term but it is expected that the US and many countries
in the European Union will further tighten their fiscal policies
or implement austerity measures in order for them to return to
more sustainable fiscal paths in the next few years. There is a
general consensus that these major developed countries with fiscal
tightening policies will be in a period of low-growth in the next

few quarters.

While the three economies in Mainland China, Hong Kong and
Macau, have still posted relatively strong growth rates in 2011,
they have also been facing accelerating inflationary pressures.
With fears of property bubbles emerging, these governments
have imposed some property restrictive measures which more
likely will suppress potential buyers’ appetite in the short term.
Nevertheless, over the medium and long term, the Group
remains optimistic about the outlook for the three economies
and therefore their respective property markets. Given Hong
Kong's still solid economic fundamentals and benefiting from
the continuing growth in Mainland China coupled with the low
interest environment and the government’s pledge to increase
land supply all of which are factors attributing to a healthy
and sustained growth of local property market. The Group's
investment property portfolio is expected to perform well under
strong demand and high rental for quality commercial properties
in both Hong Kong and Macau. Looking forward, the Group will
maintain sufficient cash reserve and high liquidity and to look for

opportunities for future growth and expansion.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that
they are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’
confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board
reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders and comply
with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements, and to fulfill
its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

Throughout the year of 2011, the Company has complied
with all Code Provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited except for certain areas of non-compliance that are

discussed later in this report.

THE BOARD AND THE MANAGEMENT

The Board lays down corporate strategies, approves overall
business plans and, on behalf of the shareholders, supervises
the company’s financial performance, its management and
organization. The Board is also responsible for overseeing the
preparation of financial statements of each financial period, which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs the Group and of
the results and cash flow of that period. The Board defines the
scope within which the management team carries out day-to-day
management tasks. Each of executive directors oversees specific

areas of our business.

The Board determines the Company’s overall objectives, strategies
and business plans based on the recommendations of the
management team and approves the key figures underlying the

budgets prepared by the management team.

18 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

A SRR W
EERUNERSKREZCEERTER RER
BRE-UWRGEREFIEAREERELAR
?Kﬁifﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@i&Z%%§°%$@T\
REZACEEARER UFERETEHIRE
BHERZE - BT H &R TREI'JEQT?.%T'J?A&J@T?
HE s BhXERZAE

RZF——FB BARE TXHwROETH
ESN KRR ETEABAERXHAARAA
EH EMRAMSETOAE [EXEERAFER
sTR (TRESTRI) RATH ST AR -

EHG LG

E=otEOXRE HERBXBKITEUR
RERBEREBARRZHUBRR ARBZE
BERAB - EZENAEEESMBHBE M
BHREZHEH EYBEREEELRATFRBRA
SEZHRRBERABRCEERRERE-&E

FERTERENTHRERAER  &EE %
HTEFEBARAEBNFES M-

EFEREBEEEBLER BEEARAZERE
B WEEEBHE UMM EEEERE
ZEENTEHRTF -



L I DN

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board reviews and approves the Company’s budgets and
checks to see if the targets are being achieved. It also monitors
the Company’s liquidity and cash positioning. It approves the

Company’s significant transactions.

The Board and management team handle material price
information with strict confidence. Public announcements are
made in a timely manner to keep shareholders and the public

abreast with the latest developments.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at 31 December 2011, the Board comprises seven Directors,
more than one-third of the Directors are non-executive and
independent of management, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board are collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Company’s affair. The Board has a
balance of skill and experience appropriate for the requirements
of the Group's businesses. Four of the Directors are executive,
namely Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, Executive Chairman, Mr.
TSANG Chiu Ching, Deputy Chairman, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen
Sylvia and Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, and three of the
Directors are independent non-executive, namely Mr. HUI Yan
Kit, Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary, Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward. Each
of Directors’ respective biographical details is set out in the
“Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report. During
the year, Mr. WU Binquan resigned as executive director of the
Company. It is the opinion of the Directors that the Board has the
necessary skills and experience appropriate for discharging their

duties as Directors in the best interest of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board at all time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors, and complied with the requirement that these
should include one such director with appropriate professional
qualifications of accounting or related financial management
expertise. Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary has the appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in financial matters
required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules, the
Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his independence to the

Company.

BOARD PRACTICES

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings
adhere to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is
addressed to the Board. All Directors have access to board paper
and related materials, and are provided with adequate information
which enable the Board to make an informed decision on the
matters to be discussed and considered at the Board meetings.
Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary
and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable

notice by any Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free
to have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain
further information, when required and the Directors can obtain

independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
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To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, RARFIMA REBREEREBBEER
business, family relationship among the members of the Board LEBma T oMW EEGKE 2HBET
except that Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a brother of Mr. TSANG MPB EBAREBER - TEFERAEET
Chiu Ching and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia. Each of Directors  EE{IE K EZEXEEBIE-

also does not have any direct or indirect material relationship with

the Group.

No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the HREZEBEAASERTMANABE B
Directors as the Board does not foresee any contingent liabilities REARNEEEERR -
against the Group.

“E-—F+-_A=t-BULFE &

During the year ended 31 December 2011, 6 Board meetings RECE
have been held. Details of the attendance of the Directors are as EERTANREH - ESLHFAFBOT:

follows:
Number of Board meeting attended/
Number of Board meeting held
HEEEEER A
FETHESEERIRE
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Exg EnEE® REZE® yMZzEEg
Executive Directors PITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel TR
(Chairman and the Chief (FEF#
Executive Officer) TTEAEE) 6/6 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching BRI St A
(Deputy Chairman) (BIE£/E) 6/6 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia 2 AR 10 22 & 6/6
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KEAEZ =+ 6/6 0/0 0/0 0/0
Mr. WU Binquan R 2 A
(resigned with effective (B=F——1F
from 1 Oct 2011) TH—HEFFE) 2/5 0/0 0/0 0/0

Independent non-Executive BUHHTESE

Directors
Mr. HUI Yan Kit FFALE A 6/6 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary EEASLA 6/6 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward @EELEE 6/6 2/2 1/1 11

gy (mE) Han —g——sen 21
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of 2 years and will
continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either party
giving not less than six months’ prior notice in writing to other.
All Directors are subject to retirement from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting as required by the bye-laws of the

Company (“Bye-laws”).

Service contracts have been entered between the Company
with each of the independent non-executive Directors providing,
amongst other things, their term of offices for a period of ranged
from 2 years to 3 years until terminated by either party giving
not less than one month’s prior notice in writing to the other.
Moreover, they would also be subject to retirement by rotation at

each annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings
of the Company. Directors appointed by the Board during the year
are required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the
first general meeting immediately following their appointments.
Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third of Directors, or,
if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest

to but not less than one-third are required to retire from office.

Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business

and operations of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS HEZHRRS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix ~ ANAFDHEMEN FHRBHEE+EBESE
10 of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding TBHFR G 2ZESFR ([FESFR]) - EAK
securities transactions by the Directors (the “Model Code"). RAEFEERBH 2 TATH -KRAMBES
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company EHBFEERE ARARABAZEETEINEER
confirmed that all the Directors have complied with the required CE——F T AT HLEFERETERLE
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code throughout the TFRIER 2R HFE-

year ended 31 December 2011.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE EIE BAT B

OFFICER

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief TETFUARE EERTHRBH CBEED
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed B THEARR-ATHIT - TBREEAEER
by the same person. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is the Executive BT EFE ML ERTITRER - TTHRER
Chairman of the Company and no Chief Executive Officer has ZETEHEBRALANT - ESSHE
been appointed. The responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer BMREEABTEEEB R EFEBRIESIES
have been carried out by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel. The Board BARAMBECRET R AN EEEETTY
believes that it is in the best interest of the Company and the MEEERITITRAR B BRESZR
Shareholders as a whole for Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, who is 2R KW e AR QR LR 2 B8
knowledgeable in the business of the Group and possesses the B E A e

essential leadership skills to guide discussions of the Board in an

effective manner, to continue to carry out the responsibilities of

Chief Executive Officer, which ensures on the effectiveness and

efficiency of the decision making process of the Board.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD EHEZLZEY

Nomination Committee REZES

The Nomination Committee was established on 16 September REEZBEN_ZETRAF LA+ NBRKY E
2005 with a written terms of reference which are available from EHBEGEEMERAADWMEZRER R
the Company Secretary at any time. The terms of reference of the ZZESvHEBEORNEESEEME
Nomination Committee include making recommendations for all ZE - HNEREFZEELREZ R 2T ——
appointment, re-designation and re-appointment of Directors to F+_A=+—H REZE8gH=-UKEHA
the Board. As at 31 December 2011, the Nomination Committee B WEH /B IENITES  BIRERLE
comprises three members, all of whom are independent non- HEEPAEERFTAGREE BEEBEERRES
executive directors, namely Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward, Mr. WONG RE®XF-

Tak Ming Gary and Mr. HUI Yan Kit. Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward is the

Chairman of the Committee.

PR (R HRAT —R——maR 23
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The Nomination Committee is also responsible for determining the
independence of each Director and conducting formal assessment
of the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution
of each Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating
the Board’s performance, the Nomination Committee considers a

number of factors, including those set out in the Code.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Nomination Committee has held 1 meeting, to review
the structure, size and composition of the existing Board, and the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board members and senior staffs of the

Company are able to run the business of the Group steadily.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee,
on named basis and by category, at committee meetings during
the year is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report

above.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will
retire from office at the Company’s annual general meeting. In
accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. TSANG Chiu
Mo Samuel, Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching, and Mr. HUI Yan Kit will retire
by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Mr.
HUI Yan Kit was appointed as independent non-executive Director
of the Company in July 2004. He has been the independent non-

executive Director of the Company for over seven years.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with written terms of reference no less exacting terms
than the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available from the Company Secretary at any time.
As at 31 December 2011, the Remuneration Committee comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan
Kit, Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary and Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward. Mr.
HUI Yan Kit is the Chairman of the Committee.
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The duties of the Remuneration Committee includes making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, reviewing
and approving the management’'s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board's corporate goals and objectives, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of all Directors and senior management and approving the
compensation to Directors and senior management on termination
or dismissal or appointment provided that no Director was
involved in deciding his/her own remuneration. Remuneration

package for executive Directors are as follows:

1. The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic

salary and pensions.

2. Salaries are reviewed annually. Salary increases are
made where the Remuneration Committee believes that
adjustments are appropriate to reflect performance,
contribution, increased responsibilities and/or by reference to

market/sector trends.

3. In addition to basic salary, executive Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into consideration factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual

performances.

4.  Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual

report.

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The
emoluments of the Directors are determined with reference to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance and the

prevailing market rates.
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The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee has held 1 meeting to
review the existing remuneration packages of Directors and
senior managements of the Company, and to recommend the
remuneration packages for Directors and senior managements of
the Company. The recommended remuneration packages have

been approved by the entire Board.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee,
on named basis and by category, at committee meetings during
the year is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report

above.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference which are available from the Company Secretary at any
time. The Audit Committee currently comprises three members,
all of whom are independent non-executive Directors. As at 31
December 2011, the members are Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary
(the Chairman of the Committee), Mr. HUI Yan Kit and Mr. AU
Chi Wai Edward all of whom are not involved in the day-to-day

management of the Company.

The Audit Committee convenes meetings at least twice a year.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial
statements, annual reports, interim reports and major comments
on financial reporting contained in the financial statements
and reports), examining and studying the Company’s financial
reporting system and procedures for internal supervision and
control, and making recommendations to the Board on matters
regarding the appointment of external auditors and auditing fee

etc.
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings, during which the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2010 and the interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2011 were reviewed. Please refer to the table set out in
the section “Board Practices” of this report for the attendance
record of individual Audit Committee members. All these meetings

were convened in accordance with the Bye-laws.

Save as disclosed above, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2011.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants (“BDQO"), be nominated
for re-appointment as external auditors of the Company at the

forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare
Financial Statements for each financial year that give a true and
fair view of the Company’s state of affairs as at the end of the
financial year and of its profit or loss for the year then ended. In

preparing the Financial Statements, the Directors are required to:

o select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a
consistent basis, making judgements and estimates that are

prudent, fair and reasonable;

o state the reasons for any significant departure from the

relevant accounting standards; and

o prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis,
unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company

will continue in business for the foreseeable future.
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The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregularities.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company, BDO
Limited, about their reporting responsibilities on the financial
statements of the Group is set out in the Auditors’ Report on
pages 47 to 49.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION
BDO have been appointed as the external auditors of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting and they will hold
office until the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2011 have been audited by BDO.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, BDO, Certified Public
Accountants, the external auditors of the Group, provided the

following services to the Group:—
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2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Audit services (provided by ZERY (B = 2FANTT
Grant Thornton) =) - 610
Audit services (provided by BDO) ZBRT (BEBULERE
B ETRD PR 520 -
Major transaction accounts reporting FEXHERBMERS
services (provided by BDO) (BB EEZZEAD
EHARME) - 50
Total: CEE 520 660

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011




ABan. NN

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Audit Committee reviews each year a letter from the external
auditors confirming their independence and objectivity and holds

meetings with BDO to discuss the scope of their audit.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control systems. The internal control systems are designed
to meet the Group’s particular needs and the risks to which it is
exposed, and by their nature can only provide reasonable, but not

absolute assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital
expenditure, maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring
the reliability of financial information used for business and
publication. Qualified management throughout the Group
maintains and monitors the internal control systems on an

ongoing basis.

The board has engaged a consultant company to conduct a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems during
the year and is of the view that the systems of internal control
adopted for the year ended 31 December 2011 were assessed to
be satisfactory and were functioning properly, to a large extent, in

safeguarding the assets employed by the Group.
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SHAREHOLDERS” RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’
relationship with the Company’s shareholders, the Company
has established various channels of communications with its
shareholders such as publication of interim and annual reports,
press release and announcement of the latest development of
the Company in a timely manner. The annual general meeting
provides an opportunity for shareholders to exchange views with
the Board. The Chairman, appropriate members of different
Board Committees and the external auditors of the Company are
available to answer shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions
are proposed at annual general meeting on each substantially
separate issue, including the election of individual Directors. In
addition, details of the poll voting procedures and the rights
of shareholders on poll voting are included in the circular to
shareholders despatched together with the annual report. Details

of the proposed resolutions are also set out in the circular.
The website of the Group (www.clh.com.hk) is also updated

constantly to inform investors and the general public of the latest

information of the Group.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated

financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during
the year. The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations are set out in note 6 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
and the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that

date are set out in the financial statements on pages 50 to 160.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out on page 54 and in note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year is HK$16,000 (2010: HK$32,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial

statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group
are set out in note 17(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
Further details of the Group's investment properties are set out on

pages 162 to pages 164.
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SHARE CAPITAL
There were no movements in either the Company's authorized or

issued share capital during the year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2011, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividend amounted to HK$27,463,000
represented by the contributed surplus of HK$213,978,000 after
compensating the accumulated losses of HK$186,515,000. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for

believing that:

(i)  the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to

pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii)  the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued

capital and share premium accounts.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
bye-laws and there was no restriction against such rights under

the laws of Bermuda.

FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 161.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or

sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman)
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching (Deputy Chairman)

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania

Mr. WU Binquan (resigned on 1 October 2011)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUI Yan Kit

Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary

Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward (appointed on 1 January 2011)
Mr. TANG Man Ching (resigned on 1 January 2011)

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company's bye-laws, at
each annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the

time being shall retire from office by rotation.
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DIRECTORS’” SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company which runs for an initial term of
two years and will be renewable for successive terms of one year
until terminated by either party by giving to the other not less

than six month's prior written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term between
2 years to 3 years until terminated by either party by giving to the

other not less than one month's prior written notice.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries,
fellow subsidiaries or holding companies was a party and in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any

time during the year.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors

are independent.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, aged 38, brother of the
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, and

Executive Director, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed

Company’s Deputy Chairman,

as Executive Director and Executive Chairman in September 1999
and April 2004 respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning, business development and corporate finance
portfolio. Mr. Tsang is a director of ST (79) Investment Limited ("ST
(79) Investment") and Barsmark Investments Limited ("Barsmark"),
substantial shareholders of the Company, and a director of ST
Investments Holding Limited, the holding company of ST (79)

Investment and Barsmark.

Mr. TSANG holds a Master degree in Corporate Finance. Prior to
joining the Group, he had gained broad experience working with
international firms in building construction, hotel management,

financing and strategic investment.

Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, aged 35, brother of the Company's
Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, and Executive
Director, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed as
Executive Director and Deputy Chairman in September 1999
and June 2007 respectively. He is responsible for the evaluation
and implementation of business development strategies as
well as investment activities. Mr. Tsang is also a director of ST
(79) Investment and Barsmark, substantial shareholders of the
Company and a director of ST Investments Holding Limited, the

holding company of ST (79) Investments and Barsmark.

Before joining the Group, Mr. TSANG worked in a finance
company responsible for corporate finance functions, direct

investments and project financing.
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Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, aged 37, sister of Company’s
Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, and Deputy
Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, was appointed as Executive
Director in October 2010. She has been serving as director of
a number of other subsidiaries of the Group with the earliest
appointment back to 2002. She is now responsible for the sales
and marketing of the Group, in particular, the residential property
investment business segment. Ms. Tsang is also a director of
ST (79) Investment, Barsmark, substantial shareholders of the
Company and a director of ST Investments Holding Limited, the

holding company of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Ms. TSANG received her tertiary education in Canada and holds
a Bachelor degree in Economics. Before joining the Group, Ms.
Tsang worked in a retail business responsible for its operation,

sales and marketing and had over 11 years experience in the field.

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, aged 54, joined the Group in
1999 and was appointed as Executive Director in January 2001.
She is responsible for overseeing the Group’s Finance and Human
Resources & Corporate Affairs departments as well as all legal

matters of the Group.

Ms. CHU received her tertiary education in Canada. Prior to
joining the Group, she had more than 12 years of experience
working in the financial field of various commercial enterprises

both in Hong Kong and Canada.
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 38, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in July 2004. Before joining the Group, Mr.
HUI had more than 8 years of experience in sales and marketing
both in Hong Kong and China. He is currently a general manager
of an international corporation engaged in plastic material

manufacturing and trading.

Mr. WONG Tak Ming Gary, aged 36, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director in September 2006. He
holds a Bachelor degree in Applied Accounting. He is a practicing
certified public accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member
of both the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Taxation Institution of Hong Kong and also an associate of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He
now runs a professional accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has
over ten years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and

corporate finance.

Mr. AU Chi Wai Edward, aged 37, was appointed as an
Independent non-executive Director in January 2011. He received
his tertiary education in Canada. He owns and runs his own
business, which covers food and beverage, interior decorations,
equipment trading, garment and property investment for over 10

years.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
OF ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2011,

each of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company in the

the interests and short positions of

shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
“SFO")) which

(i) were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock

XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they are taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO; or (iii) have
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code contained in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as

follows:

(i) Interests in shares and underlying shares of the

EHELREETBANBRAA R SHHE
AT o AH B 3 1 2 e A ~ A R A K
2R 2 SR Rk A

RZTE——F+ZA=+—H (MREFHFK
HIEGRP ([EHREEGHD]) EXVEET RS
AEBEMERARRBEABERGHBRAA
(M2 ]) (BEREES K éfl%ﬁlJZﬁ%ﬁ
B HEERBEXEERA IR RAR)
S(NRIEEF LG 1%15!%’352{\*% BT 7
2B MR ek SR(INRIRH R FTE S L AR
A (TEMRB) sk 2 2% #HIJ/E%J@NA
AR SEERFBTHRABELRR
R HAEAEROEE (K& %&Hﬁiﬂwﬁu%xv*ﬁ
ZER)ZKRMD HERORESFFIERR
KRBT :

(i) REQXARGRAEBRD 2EDS

Company

Name of company Number of Approximate
in which ordinary Ordinary percentage
shares/securities shares/ of total
Name of Director Nature of interests are held securities held shareholding
RT5AR FEBEER HEEREZ
EEHRR EaME BELZER #% BHH BAED
Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching Beneficial interests The Company 749,250 0.25%
BB A B /NS 749,250 0.25%
Interest of controlled  The Company 40,794,195 13.70%

corporation (Note 1 and 3)
S A B a PAN/NE] 40,794,195 13.70%

(M#E1R3)
Interest of controlled  The Company 88,275,577 29.66%

corporation (Note 2 & 3)
S A B ZAN/NE] 88,275,577 29.66%

(M#E2%3)
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Name of company Number of Approximate
in which ordinary Ordinary percentage
shares/securities shares/ of total
Name of Director Nature of interests are held securities held shareholding
RTHAF FEZER HEEREZ
EEHR EEME BEZER B% BHEH BABEDL
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Interest of controlled  The Company 40,794,195 13.70%
Samuel corporation (Note 1 and 3)
LR LA gkl b e KA F] 40,794,195 13.70%
(B3ET1R3)
Interest of controlled  The Company 88,275,577 29.66%
corporation (Note 2 & 3)
S K B m KA F] 88,275,577 29.66%
(f3E2523)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Interest of controlled  The Company 40,794,195 13.70%
Sylvia corporation (Note 1 and 3)
D3 + S K B w RAF] 40,794,195 13.70%
(B3ET1R23)
Interest of controlled  The Company 88,275,577 29.66%
corporation (Note 2 & 3)
S K B w RAF] 88,275,577 29.66%
(f3E2523)
Notes: LS
1. These shares were beneficially owned by Barsmark 1. BFEE ) ABarsmark Investments
Investments Limited. Limited % 254 %
2. These shares were beneficially owned by ST (79) Investment 2. Fh A BST (79) Investment Limited
Limited. *ﬁ%ﬁ
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3. The issued share capital of Barsmark Investments Limited
and ST (79) Investment Limited are both wholly and
beneficially owned by ST Investments Holding Limited (“ST
Investments”), the issued share capital of which is beneficially
owned to one-third by each of Fortune Ocean Limited (a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu
Ching), Conba Investments Limited (a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel) and
Ssky Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially
owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia). Mr. TSANG Chiu
Ching, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. TSANG Chiu
Yuen Sylvia are directors of Barsmark Investments Limited,
ST (79) Investment Limited and ST Investments. Mr. TSANG
Chiu Ching is a director of Fortune Ocean Limited. Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel is a director of Conba Investments Limited.
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia is a director of Ssky Investments
Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and Chief
Executive (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 & 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have such provisions of
the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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(i) RERTBEREZER

(ii) Interests in the Share options of the Company

Exercise Number Approximate %
Name of Director/ Date of grant of price per of options of shareholding
chief executive share options Exercisable period Share outstanding in the Company
EE FE WRTE EEARREZ
THABHEE RbBRERS TR BRITEE BREHE BABDH
(HKS)
(BH%)
Ms. Chu Ming Tak 22 May 2009 22 May 2009 to 0.31 8,930,087 3.00%
Evans Tania 21 May 2019
AARLL —EETNF —BENF 0.31 8,930,087 3.00%
HAA-+ZH IAZ+ZHZE
—T-NF
AA=-+—H
Ms. Sze Tak On 22 May 2009 22 May 2009 to 0.31 7,441,739 2.50%
21 May 2019
iR —ETNF —EENF 0.31 7,441,739 2.50%
AA=+=H AAZ+ZHZE
—NE
RA=-+—H
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen 21 April 2011 21 April 2011 to 0.395 2,970,000 1.00%
Sylvia 20 April 2021
LR —E——fF —ET——F 0.395 2,970,000 1.00%
MA=+—H WMAZ+—HZ
—E-—F
mA=+H
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ R A A 7 I oy iR B A Ay
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN R 2 R IR

SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE

COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section i —F+ZA=+—8 RBREZEHF K
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2011, the Company B 15]%3361%?@““ ZEEREELM A

had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ TARABEEEFBEARR D HITIRAS%K
interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s ez X ERFREZIRE 2BHMOT  ItE
issued share capital. These interests are in addition to those in B DA RBECEERTETHRAB R

respect of the Directors and Chief Executive as disclosed above. LASNE -
Long position in shares RGBzHR
Approximate
percentage
Number of of total
Name Nature of interests shares held shareholding
¥ HEERE
BRREE EaME :&vig - §E| ZHABE DL
Barsmark Investments Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 40,794,195 13.70%
Barsmark Investments Limited (FfizE1) EniEm 40,794,195 13.70%
ST (79) Investment Limited (Note 1) Beneficial Interest 88,275,577 29.66%
ST (79) Investment Limited ( fi3E1) EmiEm 88,275,577 29.66%
ST Investments Holding Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 129,069,772 43.36%
(Note 2)
ST Investments Holding Limited (Fft5E1) S )% B R A 129,069,772 43.36%
(FFzE2)
Conba Investments Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 129,069,772 43.36%
(Note 2)
EREREBRLAA (K1) S K B R m 129,069,772 43.36%
(FfF5E2)
Ssky Investments Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 129,069,772 43.36%
(Note 2)
Ssky Investments Limited (B &£1) REGEB R 129,069,772 43.36%
(Fff5E2)
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Approximate

percentage

Number of of total

Name Nature of interests shares held shareholding

PR HRERE

REERE ERME igvig - q= ZERE DL

Fortune Ocean Limited (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 129,069,772 43.36%

(Note 2)
Fortune Ocean Limited (Fff&F1) HEHEEEE 129,069,772 43.36%
(KtaE2)
Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement)  Beneficial interest 29,531,250 9.92%
Limited (Note 3)
Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) B 5 2% 29,531,250 9.92%
Limited ( fi7£3)

Szeto Investments Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 29,531,250 9.92%
(Note 3)

Szeto Investments Holdings Limited S AEE S 29,531,250 9.92%
(H7E3)

Szeto International Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation 29,531,250 9.92%
(Note 3)

Szeto International Holdings Limited R A E 29,531,250 9.92%
(BEE3)

Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin (Note 3) Interest of controlled corporation 29,531,250 9.92%

At EE R+ (MEE3) Rt EEER 29,531,250 9.92%

Notes:

GES

1. Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited are
both wholly and beneficially owned by ST Investments Holding
Limited, the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned as
to one-third by each of (i) Conba Investments Limited (a company
wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel); (ii)
Fortune Ocean Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching); and (iii) Ssky Investments Limited (a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen
Sylvia).

Barsmark Investments Limited ST (79)
Investment Limited¥J B8ST Investments
Holding Limited2 & Bm# A - M A 2 17
BASRIBEOEELREFRA ﬂ(_FEEJEE
BREEREERBE2RAA)
Ocean Limited(*?aﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁiiﬁﬁﬁ
%A 2 A7) Kdiii) Ssky Investments Limited
(—HBaYBAZt2EEaRACR ) E
REB=D -

) Fortune

HACHSE (SRE) HIRAT ZF——F F)t
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2. These shares represent the aggregate number of shares beneficially
owned by Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment
Limited.

3. Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited is wholly-owned
by Szeto Investments Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of
which is wholly-owned by Szeto International Holdings Limited.
Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin is wholly and beneficially interested in the entire

issued share capital of Szeto International Holdings Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other person other than the Directors
or Chief Executive of the Company had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company

were entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five major customers of the Group were attributable to the
property investment business and money lending business. The
five major suppliers of the Group were attributable to travel
related business and health and beauty services. The percentages
of the sales and purchases for the year attributable to the Group's

major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 15.3%
— five largest customers combined 24.8%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 27.2%
— five largest suppliers combined 81.2%
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At no time during the year, Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these

major customers or suppliers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year with the code
provisions same as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
and most of the recommended best practices in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules
except for certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed in

the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with
reference to “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the
Board of Directors and the Company’s auditors in matters
coming within the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the
effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and risk
evaluation. The Audit Committee comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. WONG Tak
Ming Gary and Mr. Au Chi Wai Edward. Two meetings were held
during the current financial year. Audit Committee had met with
the management of the Company and the auditors to review the
final results, considered the significant accounting policies, and
discussed with the management of the Group’s internal control
system. The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011 have been reviewed and approved by

the Audit Committee.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

From information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the Company's
total issued share capital are held by the public at all times during

the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2009
were audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong (“GTHK"), now
known as JBPB & Co. Pursuant to a merger of the business of
GTHK and BDO Limited ("BDO") to practice in the name of BDO
as announced on 26 November 2010, GTHK resigned and BDO
was appointed as auditors of the Company effective from 29
November 2010. The financial statements for the years ended 31
December 2010 and 2011 were audited by BDO.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the

Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania

Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012
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25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

Hong Kong
A
EEE : +852 2218 8288 BETHEPIR
35 : +852 2815 2239 K& AI2518
www.bdo.com.hk
To the shareholders of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited FitLEE (EE)EGRLT
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (RERZAMA L ZERA )

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 50 to 160, which
comprise the consolidated and company statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

A RER

AAZEEN (AT [HRM])EEAVNEARE
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T RAEZEHENGARERER UK
TEEHRRMEREHBRER -

RS M B mEARIBNEE
BERAERAEERBEEEGHMASHMGH
(BAMBREER) REE (R AEH) E’\J
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for

the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION =97

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true BMRE ZEREUMBERRERE (BB
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the BREED) BEEMAFiRE ERFR
Group as at 31 December 2011, and of the Group’s profit and BEEBR T ——F+A=1+—BMHEHRK
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Ak EEEHZEZBLEFEMNEMNRRESR
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared B UWEERBEE (RAHEH) HEBRRTZ

in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong BB

Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited ERVEREEMANEBRERAA
Certified Public Accountants HEEEAD

Jonathan Russell Leong REKE

Practising Certificate Number P03246 HEFERRP03246

Hong Kong, 27 March 2012 BAE —_E-—-F=A=++tH
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B Az i BOA R

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEF G H=A—HILEE

2011 2010
—E—-—F —ZE-ZF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 BET T BT T
(Restated)
(sE5)
Revenue W = 5(a) 27,456 27,709
Cost of sales 85 65 B AR (8,643) (8,942)
Gross profit EF 18,813 18,767
Other income H At Y A 5(b) 1,757 1,179
Fair value loss on financial assets EATENERNEREPE
at fair value through profit or loss B HBEE N TEBRE (1,252) (58)
Administrative expenses TR X (28,209) (27,365)
Finance costs BhE A AR 7 (1,336) (1,707)
Gain on disposals of available-for-sale HEAHEECHBEE L
financial assets & - 19
Fair value gain on investment properties KEYHE 2 N FERE 17(a) 21,563 51,991
Profit before income tax R FiT 18 Bt A 2 R 8 11,336 42,826
Income tax expense PS5 7 2 9 (2,796) (8,258)
Profit for the year REE R 8,540 34,568
Other comprehensive income H2mE B A
Release upon disposals of available-for-sale & ] fit i & > B &
financial assets & E R - (33)
Revaluation of available-for-sale financial &y At HE 2 MK EE
assets 20 (5,138) (636)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMZEEBA
for the year (5,138) (669)
Total comprehensive income KEEZHEHRALE
for the year 3,402 33,899
Profit for the year attributable to: LT EEEERFEERR
Owners of the Company ARREE A 10 7,862 33,862
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR M A 678 706
8,540 34,568
Total comprehensive income for UTEEEGEREFEZEHKA
the year attributable to: B
Owners of the Company YAGIE 2N 2,724 33,193
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR M A 678 706
3,402 33,899
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
Earnings per share for profit KATEEABMEERZ
attributable to the owners of SRER
the Company 11
- Basic — &K 2.64 11.38
- Diluted —#E 2.61 11.08

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011




AN 0

R

NN Y

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BT IB R DL

as at 31 December 2011
RIF——F L ZH=+—H

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 2 BET T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREAERE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WE REE 15 4,888 5,482
Investment properties "EY 17(a) 231,670 194,900
Prepaid land lease payments TEfT LA E FRIR 18 6,132 6,313
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EZHEEE 20 16,261 21,399
Loan receivables JEUR B 3k 21 31,741 195
290,692 228,289
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 70 111
Prepaid land lease payments T T AE & FRIA 18 180 180
Financial assets at fair value through TE’AEFTE@JEE&BNEJ’I—&BE
profit or loss FREZUBEE 23 3,938 5,170
Trade and other receivables and i I Eo At U AR TR &
prepayments TE IR 24 16,637 11,526
Loan receivables FEWE 21 10,211 41,833
Trust bank balances held on behalf of REEHEZET
customers IRITHE R 25 1,134 881
Cash and cash equivalents HeEMKBREEEY 26 106,612 89,064
138,782 148,765
Assets classified as held for sale DEAEBIELEZEE 17(b) - 77,330
138,782 226,095
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables EEREMER 27 7,745 4,729
Other payables and accruals E 8 < BR SR % FE BT RRIE 10,529 17,088
Obligations under finance leases & FH Hy A IE 28 46 106
Bank borrowings (secured) wRITIEE (FEME) 29 55,395 82,935
Provision for taxation RS 2,203 2,203
75,918 107,061
Net current assets RBEETFE 62,864 119,034
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBERE 353,556 347,323

g (mE) HaY —g——ses D1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
BRI B R VLA

as at 31 December 2011
e =l e

2011 2010
. —T-FF
Notes HK$°'000 HK$'000
B = BETT BT T
Non-current liabilities FREBEMF
Bank borrowings (secured) RITEE (FEAR) 29 5,861 6,413
Obligations under finance leases BhE TH A9 IR 28 - 46
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAE 33 9,889 7,093
15,750 13,552
Net assets BEEFH 337,806 333,771
EQUITY =
Share capital [ 30 59,534 59,534
Reserves A 32 276,888 273,531
Equity attributable to the owners of RAGIER ARG ER
the Company 336,422 333,065
Non-controlling interests IR S 1,384 706
Total equity R 337,806 333,771
On behalf of the Board REEFE
ERE KEAE
Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
EF EF
Director Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
LB 3N 3

as at 31 December 2011

RIF——F L ZH=+—H

2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
B 2 BT T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries N SIENEIPA o 16 49,800 53,218
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments b e W AR B IR TR A SRR 583 572
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E 19 140,556 149,744
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBRSEEY 26 83,299 70,742
224,438 221,058
Current liabilities G R=Ri
Amounts due to subsidiaries FET N B~ R TE 19 35,047 11,500
Other payables and accruals Eh FE A BR R % B BT RKIE 686 716
35,733 12,216
Net current assets REBEETFE 188,705 208,842
Total assets less current HEERRBER
liabilities/Net assets EEFHE 238,505 262,060
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 30 59,534 59,534
Reserves B 32 178,971 202,526
Total equity B 238,505 262,060
On behalf of the Board REEED
Z R KEAE
Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
EZE EZE
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
i AR SR Y A

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——F ZH=A—HILFE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

KAARERAELERE
Available-
for-sale
financial
assets Share Non-
Share Share Capital revaluation option  Accumulated controlling
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve* losses* Total interests Total
THEEL
HBEEE BR FER
BE  RGEE ARG e ERfE  BiER At 53 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETr  E%Tr  E%Tn  E%Tn  B%Tn  A%Tr  A%Trn A%t #%Tn
At 1 January 2010 RZT-TFE-F-8 59,534 147,930 146,189 8,010 4,284 (66,075) 299,872 - 299,872
Profit for the year REEEHN - - - - - 33,862 33,862 706 34,568
Other comprehensive income Hih2EMA
Release upon disposals of available-for-sale RUETRLEZHBEERER
financial assets - - - (33) - - (33) - (33)
Revaluation of available-for-sale SRARNEZHBEE (W20
financial assets (note 20) - - - (636) - - (636) - (636)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEERERALE - - - (669) - 33,862 33,193 706 33,899
At 31 December 2010 and 1 January 2011 RZZ-2F+-A=+-Bk
—Z-—-5-f-H 59,534 147,930 146,189 7341 4,284 (32,213) 333,065 706 333,771
Share option granted (note 31) BRMERE (F131) - - - 633 - 633 - 633
Share option forfeited (note 31) RN R E (MizE31) - - - - (1,339) 1,339 - - -
Transactions with owners HREBAETZRS - - - - (706) 1,339 633 - 633
Profit for the year AEERA - - - - - 7,862 7,862 678 8,540
Other comprehensive income Hs2ERA
Revaluation of available-for-sale BRAHNEZHBEE (Wi20)
financial assets (note 20) - - - (5,138) - - (5,138) - (5,138)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2AMALE - - - (5,138) - 7,862 2,724 678 3,402
At 31 December 2011 RZB--f+Zf=+-8 59,534 147,930 146,189 2,203 3,578 (23,012) 336,422 1,384 337,806
* The total balances of these equity accounts at the reporting date of * RNBERGH D ZERESE Y &0 @8
HK$276,888,000 (2010: HK$273,531,000) represent reserves in the #276,888,000C (=T — T & : B 1
consolidated statement of financial position. 273,531,00070) HHE R &R A MO R 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
A BLET R

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEF——FE T H=A—HILEE

2011 2010
—E——F —_E-EF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B & BETT BT T
Cash flows from operating activities REERELECZHESRE
Profit before income tax & BT 15 B AT i A 11,336 42,826
Adjustments for : AT SBEIEL AR
Depreciation of property, M- WEREETE
plant and equipment 15 790 1,208
Fair value gain on investment properties EME 2 A FENE 17(a) (21,563) (51,991)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TE T F & RO #E 5
payments 18 181 181
Employee share option expense EEERERX 31 633 -
Reversal of impairment loss BEEEERRTR 2
on trade receivables A E R 5(b) (92) -
Gain on disposals of HERHEEZ
available-for-sale financial assets W& E 2 W - (19)
Fair value loss on financial assets at EAFEINERRBR
fair value through profit or loss RHEE B
BEZNFEER 1,252 58
Bank interest income HRITH B A 5(b) (1,032) (486)
Dividend income from listed investments K H FH&KRE Z KA
WA 5(b) (599) (642)
Finance costs b & AR 7 1,336 1,707
Operating loss before working HMBhEEESEFHAT 2
capital changes K EE (7,758) (7,158)
Decrease/(Increase) in loan receivables FEUE Zom L (1) 76 (11,205)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FERAD, (3E) 41 (12)
Increase in financial assets at RATEINERREBER
fair value through profit or loss IR BT B B 7JD (20) (185)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and & 3 N B A R WER BA
other receivables and prepayments B FRIE (), R (5.019) 3,756
(Increase)/Decrease in trust bank balances REFFHE Z{ETHR1T
held on behalf of customers w&1F (1), E (253) 36
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables, BERMNERER  EMENER
other payables and accruals AR ERSIE R )/
100 (3,543) 6,445
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBIE R F8 (16,476) (8,323)
A% RED fIRAT —F——f 4% DD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
BBl e R

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEF G H=A—HILEE

2011 2010
—E——-F —ZT-TF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = BT T BT T
Cash flows from investing activities REEKELEZHESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B EYW ¥  BE KR E 15 (196) (456)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME 17(a) (15,207) (21,539)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEMHEE WK ERE
financial assets - (852)
Proceeds from disposals of HEHEEZWBEE
available-for-sale financial assets Z P 5IA - 26
Proceeds from disposals of HEREYEZFREHIE
Investment properties 17(b) 77,330 -
Bank interest received EUERITH R 1,032 486
Dividend received from listed investments B WK A EHiEE Z & 599 642
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEXBHE (FT#E)
investing activities BE&FE 63,558 (21,693)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEXBELEZHEERE
Capital elements of finance lease payments gt & &3 2 E AR I (106) (105)
Interest elements of finance lease payments §t& & 7 2 7 B 1% 7 (8) (17)
New bank borrowings %ﬁfﬁfﬂ%% 4,170 -
Repayments of bank borrowings BERITIEE (32,262) (5,666)
Loan interest paid ENEER ﬂ (1,328) (1,690)
Net cash used in financing activities MEXBGEREFE (29,534) (7,478)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBESEEY2EM
cash equivalents S URD) BEE 17,548 (37,494)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—BzBEEKHES
ZEY 89,064 126,558
Cash and cash equivalents R+=-—A=+—HzH2%
at 31 December RBESZEEY 106,612 89,064
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION

Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in Bermuda and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Company'’s registered office is at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal place of
business is at Room 3403, 34th Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all values are rounded to the nearest

thousand ("HK$'000") except when otherwise indicated.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as the Group

hereinafter.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 160
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collectively includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standard, Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS”) and
Interpretation (“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). The
consolidated financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities

on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 27 March 2012.

B0 WS R M
for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=A—HIFEE

— &R

HaEE (KB FRAG ([RRAA) T
RABRETMK LA —RERRERA
A HERONREEBARIMERRAF
([BERFT]) EM-ARR 2 ERE
£z 1A Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda® H ¥ B &3
B RER T HER168-2005E = O
FA3E 34183403 % °

RAEMBBRRARNRBZYEEREE
(I%1) 25 -BRBEHIN FAEEE
BUBRAAETT([BETT]) -

ARAEBREREERER  EMEQ
A2 ETBXBHBHNERE BB REM
16 R TXH - RAR R EMHE R R4
HAAREHE-

HNES0EF160H 2576 M MR TR
BEAGHMAS ([BEAETMAE])
B2 BEMBREER ([BEMBHR
FEA) (EREEFEMBEERZ @R
BAMBREER -FESFE([F
BEERDERE(TRE]) RE-
RAEMBBRRMEERE R AR K
Rz EWMAR (T EMMRR) 2@
WEME -

HE_Z——F+_A=+—HIEFEZ
BEMBREIN_E——F=A=1++
AlRESSHAETIH-

PR () HRAT —F——Em D7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——F ZH=A—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2. FWHBRT BB/ T B8R
HKFRSs AR

(a) New/revised HKFRSs - effective 1 January

2011

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which are
relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2011:

(a)

A RRETEBYBREE
A-—F2——5—-A—-HB4&XN
RAFE AEEEHRXEA TS
MEEGHAN A G HEMZ ] E
AR kel RFEA BRI R
RREAEELR-_T——F—A—
BRnzFEHEMBREREH
€ H AR

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures BEeE BEATHE
F24%, (1{ET)

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 EEMBREEN —S-ZERAUERS
SCHEN R B

Except as explained below, the adoption of new/revised
HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group's financial

statements.

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) - Financial
Instruments: Disclosures

As part of the Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010,
HKFRS 7 has been amended to enhance the interaction
between quantitative and qualitative disclosures. If the
carrying amount of a financial asset best represents
the maximum exposure to credit risk, the standard
does not require a positive statement to this effect
in the financial statements. This amended disclosure
requirement has been applied retrospectively. The
carrying amounts of the Group's loans and receivables
and bank balances represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
assets as at 31 December 2011 and 2010. The prior
year financial statements included a positive statement
to this effect which is removed in the 2011 financial
statements following the amendments. The adoption
of the amendments has no impact on the Group's
reported profit or loss, total comprehensive income or

equity for any period presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=A—HIFEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2. BRHHAET S ARG HT A v B B
HKFRSs (continued) HHER) (74)
(a) New/revised HKFRSs — effective 1 January (a) izl REBEITEBHBEREE

2011 (continued)

HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of related
party and clarifies its meaning. This may result in
changes to those parties who are identified as being
related parties of the reporting entity. The Group has
revised its accounting policy for the identification of
its related parties and has reassessed counterparties of
transactions in accordance with the revised definition.
The reassessment did not result in new related parties
being identified. Related parties identified in prior years
remain unchanged under the new accounting policy
and the Group concluded that the revised definition
does not have any material impact on the Group's
related party disclosures in the current and previous

years.

HKAS 24 (Revised) also introduces simplified disclosure
requirements applicable to related party transactions
where the Group and the counterparty are under the
common control, joint control or significant influence
of a government, government agency or similar body.
These new disclosures are not relevant to the Group
because the Group is not a government related entity.

Al-=2——F—A—H4%%
(#&)
ERETEASE2245 (&1E
‘=T) -BEALTHEE
FETERIZE 2458 (FIERT)ERT
ﬁTE‘gg/\iZE%EE/EA/&%“
BRAEET A Re G ER AR RIS
ERCHBEAT ZZEATHRE
B AREECERIBBEHEREEA
T EEEE  WERBELER 2
BRETAMRSEHFH -KEH
FHE 1% - WA TR B A T o
EHSHBRET UEFEHFZ
BEATITESE MASEE 24
mARIERl 2 BR Y AREBENARE
ERATFFE2HAEATHBRILE
FRERTE-

EEERTERE 245 (KE5T) sl
)\Eﬁ%%$$l&“ﬁiﬁﬁﬂzﬁ*
EA{W&E@%@M%% fig 4 I~
FIEHIREAZE T TTZI%EL/\
IXRGZEEWBERE -BHRAE
B IFHFRAEER WRFMM
PR BN BN TARRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——F ZH=A—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2.
HKFRSs (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but not yet effective

TR FH W AT S AR AE T A v B 75 i

el (4)

(b) B MBMRB M RERZ T
BB KRS ER
AR EL MBS RAUTEHEFE
R 2 B AT RS BT BB TS

3R] -

The following new/revised HKFRSs have been issued,
but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group.

60

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets ! ERRBREENEIE  RE-UBEEER
ZET
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax - Recovery of Underlying Assets 2 BRGHENE 2R BERE-KEEEEE
ZET
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements - Presentation BRGHENE IR BBRR 25 - Efh
(Revised) of Items of Other Comprehensive Income ? ZIBRT (BAERT) 2AKEERZ2SP
Amendments to HKAS 32 Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and FR e ERE% 2-EHHBEER
Financial Liabilities * L BBaR
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and ERBBREENETE RE-ERMBEER
Financial Liabilities * L Bam
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits ¢ BRGHENEI19% BIRH!
(Z2——%)
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements * ERQHENEIR BUBHRR
(Z2——%)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures * EEQHEAF8H BaRfARaghE A
(Z2——%)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments © ERMBREEAFT SRIES
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements * ERUBREENE0R HFAUBHRE
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements ¢ ERRBREENFNR AR
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities ¢ ERRBRERNENT RERACEEZER
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements ERUBREENERE ATEHE
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after ! RZTE——FtA—HUEHA
1 July 2011 R 2 S HARE AE
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 RZZE——F—A—H=UERR
1 January 2012 a2 FEHE AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 3 RZZE-——ZFLH A= AERA
1 July 2012 12 FE B AR
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 4 RZF—=F—H— B&NAEH
1 January 2013 R 2 S HARE AE
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after > RZZ—MF—HA— B ERA
1 January 2014 a2 FEHE AR
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 6 RZZE-—hF—H Bz AERA
1 January 2015 12 FE B AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i A B R B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEF——FE T H=A—HILEE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2. BRHHAET S ARG HT A v B B
HKFRSs (continued) HHER (74)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) SHEME ﬁc‘ﬁ*i?‘iZ%ﬁ‘ﬂ/%@ﬂ%

but not yet effective (continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosure -
Transfer of Financial Assets

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the
derecognition disclosure requirements for transfer
transactions of financial assets and allow users of
financial statements to better understand the possible
effects of any risks that may remain with the entity
on transferred assets. The amendments also require
additional disclosures if a disproportionate amount of
transfer transactions are undertaken around the end of

a reporting period.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax -
Recovery of Underlying Assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that an investment property is recovered
entirely through sale. This presumption is rebutted
if the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment property over time, rather than through
sale. The amendment will be applied retrospectively.

Amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised)
Presentation of Financial Statements

- Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require
the Group to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into those that may be
reclassified to profit and loss in the future (e.g.
revaluations of available-for-sale financial assets) and
those that may not (e.g. revaluations of property, plant
and equipment). Tax on items of other comprehensive
income is allocated and disclosed on the same basis.

The amendments will be applied retrospectively.
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EHE-WREEHEBEE

BB G ERE125 2 BE 5%
EMEETRRMBIIEE KRB
B - Wi EW R THE - B1E
EMERAAFTE (ZEERANE
MTREBHEMEREEREHE
BHRZREYER S ANEKE
DEE Rz ) - Bl ULTEHEE % BBl
WIBERT g EMER -

BRI EABIRZEBT (E
B BB ERRZ 25 - K2
Ei 38R 2 25

ER G ERNEIR 2B (K&
FHREASEEGEMEEKER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——F ZH=A—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2. PRAETRT B 88K HT 7 v W %
HKFRSs (continued) HHER) ()

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

(b)

ERMGERNRERZHET,KE
AERVMBREER (K)
BERMBEBEENEREHMT

1=}
HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of ZETNF T ABEBHBE NG
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace REEREREATEMRELES
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and FIERIE3R 2B T A HRRA
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification EMNEAMENE—BBENE I
t

and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’'s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. Fair value gains
and losses will be recognised in profit or loss except for
those non-trade equity investments, which the entity
will have a choice to recognise the gains and losses

in other comprehensive income. This aims to improve

m-ZEREHRUBEEND
Kit& -MBEETBES /EE M

FREBEEREEVBEEENEHR
ARMBEEGRRERERFE
ST R InES - F IR NN S
goﬁ?@ﬂ& & N B 1B R R 18 R
R HEHREESRARE  BER

BRI A M2 e W AR W e e e
BB EERBBEGERAIE39
SR EARLL SCE R B EED
BEFES -

and simply the approach for the classification and
measurement of financial assets compared with the

requirements of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions
to HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the
“Additions”) and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current
derecognition principles of financial instruments of
HKAS 39. Most of the Additions were carried forward
unchanged from HKAS 39, while changes were made
to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value
option. For these fair value option liabilities, the
amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is
attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented
in other comprehensive income. The remainder of
the change in fair value is presented in profit or loss,
unless presentation of the fair value change in respect
of the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan commitments
and financial guarantee contracts which have been
designated under the fair value option are scoped out
of the Additions. HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by
HKFRS 9 in its entirely. Before this entire replacement,
the guidance in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and
impairment of financial assets continues to apply. The

Group expects to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2015.

Bk 5 W5 A ik e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=A—HIFEE

PR BT W7 B ARG T A 8 B 25
FHEA ()
(b) EHEMENRER I RIE

RAIEBMEHREER (&)
EEMBBREEAEGRERMT
A (#&)
RZZE—ZTF+— A BAGTM
NEWEME B R EEREHR
ZEIERE ([FIEHRE |) AR
BaE WKEBGEREIGR
SRMIAZRBEUEBRRAMA
BEBNBREERNESRA - KEH
SR E DB B G ERIE39%
TEMEE MERRNTERES
BREAERATAEIERNIERE
MR HBABZAERIELE
HoRZEATEERZEEN S -
HEERREIMELENEBEAT
BEEHef VARHEHM2EKE
250 o B FE R H Ath 2 H W as Rt
BEZEERBEINATFEE
ERBETELESEAS G
CGRIEHBATEEZBS S ERNEREE
Bl o AT - FTIRMEL TRBIRA T
BEEENAZEFEERTBER
BR - BERBUBRELRESREE
ZEMREBSGTERE35K R
ZEIRA B G ERE395%
REh et KRB EE 2 RBESE
E’\J?‘é%|%%i@%°$ﬁgﬁﬁﬂéi

—HE—A—BERKBEHL
%%@E—E'J%%f;ﬁ

PO (R HRAT —F——f ek 03

r-;;
N\



20 )1/ s ara B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——F ZH=A—HILFE

PR BT W7 B ARG T A 8 B 25
HHER (%)
(b) Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*iﬁZ%ﬂ/@%

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2.
HKFRSs (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether
or not that power is used in practice), exposure
or rights to variable returns from the investee and
the ability to use the power over the investee to
affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains extensive
guidance on the assessment of control. For example,
the standard introduces the concept of “de facto”
control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting
rights in circumstances where its voting interest is
of sufficiently dominant size relative to the size and
dispersion of those of other individual shareholders to
give it power over the investee. Potential voting rights
are considered in the analysis of control only when
these are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical
ability to exercise them. The standard explicitly requires
an assessment of whether an investor with decision
making rights is acting as principal or agent and also
whether other parties with decision making rights are
acting as agents of the investor. An agent is engaged
to act on behalf of and for the benefit of another
party and therefore does not control the investee
when it exercises its decision making authority. The
implementation of HKFRS 10 may result in changes in
those entities which are regarded as being controlled
by the Group and are therefore consolidated in the
financial statements. The accounting requirements in
the existing HKAS 27 on other consolidation related
matters are carried forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is
applied retrospectively subject to certain transitional

provisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED
HKFRSs (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosures requirements about interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements. It also introduces
new disclosure requirements, including those related
to unconsolidated structured entities. The general
objective of the standard is to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a
reporting entity’s interests in other entities and the
effects of those interests on the reporting entity's

financial statements.

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on
how to measure fair value when it is required or
permitted by other standards. The standard applies
to both financial and non-financial items measured
at fair value and introduces a fair value measurement
hierarchy. The definitions of the three levels in this
measurement hierarchy are generally consistent with
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. HKFRS
13 defines fair value as the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants

at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——F ZH=A—HILFE

TR FH T T B AR AE 6T A i B s
HHER (A1)
(b) EEMEMRERZHT KL

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED 2.
HKFRSs (continued)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but not yet effective (continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements

(continued)
The standard removes the requirement to use bid and

ask prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted
in an active market. Rather the price within the bid-
ask spread that is most representative of fair value
in the circumstances should be used. It also contains
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users of
the financial statements to assess the methods and
inputs used in measuring fair values and the effects of
fair value measurements on the financial statements.
HKFRS 13 can be adopted early and is applied

prospectively.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of

the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs.

BIEBUMEHREER (&)
ERMBERELEREIZR QT
BitE (&)
ZERBHENEAERELEET
RRBFERTMIGHE M BEEER
BEZHAE MEXKBEEBZS
EZEBFBANTHRERKATEZE
& ZERINHBFB I BERE
FEUBBmKREREANGFERT
BFIRAZAERBGABBARA
TEFEHMBEMERITE -BE
W mEERFEI13R T REHEA
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3. EHEEBURME

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of preparation mEER

MRSV BRERGMEAZEE

BETHERAN T - RS EHAE

ﬁl\ THREBRORMEBEZIEEE

R -

3.1

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated.

BEREMERETERTANAF

The consolidated financial statements have been

prepared on the historical cost basis except for BRI R A M ERERTIIRBE
ERAEEY BB EEER T

investment properties and certain financial instruments
SRR EEME -

which are stated at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Certain income derived and expenses incurred for the
year ended 31 December 2010 have been restated as

follows:

(i)  During the year, the directors have reviewed
the principal activities of the Group. Having
considered that income from travel related
business arises incidentally during the year and
in the foreseeable future, the directors have
classified income from the sale of hotel vouchers
and ferry tickets amounting to HK$7,000 as other
income instead of revenue. Income generated
from the sale of travelling and entertainment
packages during last year amounting to
HK$22,000 is thereby reclassified from revenue
to other income to conform with the current
year's presentation. The corresponding purchase
costs incurred in last year for those travelling
and entertainment packages amounting to
HK$81,000 has been reclassified from cost of

sales to administrative expenses.

(i) Interest income arising from margin accounts
and settlement handling fee income derived
in last year amounting to HK$437,000 and
HK$158,000 respectively have been reclassified
from other income — sundry to interest income
under revenue and revenue of brokerage and
commission income respectively, to conform with
the current year's presentation as the directors
consider that such classification better reflect the
nature of those income. For internal reporting
purpose, those income have been included under

the segment revenue of “Stock broking”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——F ZH=A—HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Basis of preparation (continued)

The above reclassifications have no financial impact
to the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of cash flows and

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements,

are disclosed in note 4.

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are excluded from consolidation from the date
that control ceases. Inter-company transactions and
balances between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in

which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=A—HIFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Business combination and basis of

32 XBEHRGREEE (H)

consolidation (continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the
Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed are principally measured at
acquisition-date fair value. The Group's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured at
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains or
losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may
elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure
the non-controlling interest either at fair value or at the
proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed
unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments,

in which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration are
recognised against goodwill only to the extent that
they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a

liability are recognised in profit or loss.

WREM B A R X B A YE AT
fro —TEWBKARZABREE
FRELBERARE (FRKET)
BTZEERNEER Rz A ER
Bt EN TR BRI EE N
AEABREEREKBARATE
AR AKELAIPTRRRE T 2
BRELNKBRBMATESEHNTE
AT EE £ 2 Wan S B B RN B s R
NER - AEBEAIZEERHEE
EBEARBET 2HBEEFEL
RV E B L D) FT B IR AR
o FTELE Z B HBR AT ER
X BRIFRERARETRATA
BEL EUERT  ZERAAHE
& FR

W R B ARER
BEHHEAFEER BRYIA
REMNFERBEWREDHHOQFE
AAERER (RERWE B HE12E
RAIEGHENBBAMELENRD
BRER - FIBEEMELAREN
REFEOMASEEXERERER

PR () AT —2——sam 09



20| |\ s B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——F ZH=A—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Business combination and basis of

32 XBEHRGREEE (H)

70

consolidation (continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interest is the amount of those
interests at initial recognition plus the non-controlling
interest’s share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group's interest and the non-controlling interest are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners

of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the
same manner as would be required if the relevant

assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.3

34

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Company has the power
to control, directly or indirectly, the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their
activities. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Company

controls another entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included
in a disposal group. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable at the reporting date.

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency of the individual
entity using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EEFFENBORKEE (57)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.4 Foreign currency translation (continued) 3.4 SMEERBR (&)
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are BRATFEAIINES IR 2 I E M IE B
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated RETATEERERACEREN
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair BRE WERRARTFEZREE KT
value was determined and are reported as part of e NI BE RN AEFT 2 2 3
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that E¥BERATEENRE -

are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual Rize M BmET  FHEREKB
financial statements of foreign operations, originally TRARTEEEREK  EKFME
presented in a currency different from the Group's W HINER 2 BRI BRKIEE
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$. ERNEK EERBEDERS
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ HEAZ WTAE R H R AHBE - A
at the closing rates at the reporting date. Income LEXHE®RZ S AER X
and expenses have been converted into HK$ at the s B 2 FE R (REZES
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at 2 ERIME XKE)) EBIRAHE
the average rates over the reporting period provided B AZREFER2ERNEZEER
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. HEfrmBRABBENRAZBE
Any differences arising from this procedure have HEP D HARET

been recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated separately in the translation reserve in

equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such WIRINEBELE BRINNEZRE
exchange differences are reclassified from equity to HRAEFHDEEERZRIEAD
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. B EEE D -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.5 Revenue and other income recognition

Revenue and other income is recognised when it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and when the revenue and costs, if applicable,

can be measured reliably on the following bases:

(a)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the customer
and collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured. This is usually taken as the
time when the goods are delivered and the

customer has accepted the goods.

Revenue from rendering of services is recognised

when the relevant services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the effective interest rate

applicable.

Commission and management fee income
is recognised when the agreed services are

provided.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion

basis over the relevant lease terms.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to

receive payment is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which

they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease, and other
items of plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to its working condition and location for its intended

use.

Buildings held under leasing agreements are
depreciated over their expected useful lives of 38 years

or over the term of lease, if shorter.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 3.7ME -BMERRE (F)

Depreciation on other assets is provided to write off
the cost less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements 10 - 33 3%
Furniture, fixtures and

office equipment 20 -33 "%
Motor vehicles 33 5%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,

at each reporting date.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned

assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the

financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011

BEFE A=A HILERE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EEFFBORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.8 Investment properties

3.8 REMWE

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.
These include land held for a currently undetermined
future use and property that is being constructed or

developed for future use as investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted

for as if it were held under a finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
at the reporting date reflect the prevailing market

conditions at the reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which they

arise.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost of
property for subsequent accounting is its fair value at

the date of change in use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

3.9 FMBEERE

Prepaid land lease payments, property, plant and
equipment and the Company’s interests in subsidiaries
are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be

recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessment of time value of money and the risk

specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As a result,
some assets are tested individually for impairment and

some are tested at cash-generating unit level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss

had been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FF ZH=A—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.10 Leases 3.10 &

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series

of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group

determines that the arrangement conveys a right to

use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of

time in return for a payment or a series of payments.

Such a determination is made based on an evaluation

of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless

of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

0]

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
being held under finance leases. Leases which
do not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets
under finance leases, the amounts representing
the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the
present value of the minimum lease payments of
such assets, are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligation

under finance leases.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under
finance lease agreements corresponds to those
applied to comparable acquired assets. The
corresponding finance lease liability is reduced by

lease payments less finance charges.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.10 Leases (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Assets acquired under finance leases
(continued)

Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the
leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance
of the obligations for each accounting period.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use the assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating
leases are initially stated at cost and subsequently
recognized on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Assets leased out under operating leases
as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the nature
of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term

on the same basis as the rental income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FF ZH=A—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.10 Leases (Continued) 3.10F 4 (&)

80

(iv) Assets leased out under operating leases
as the lessor (continued)
Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in

which they are earned.

3.11 Financial assets

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired
and where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this

designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade
date. When financial assets are recognised initially,
they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,

directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments expire
or are transferred and substantially all of the risks and

rewards of ownership have been transferred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.11 Financial assets (continued)
At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the

classification of the financial asset.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
The Group's financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss represent financial assets held for

trading.

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term, or it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together
and for which there is evidence of a recent
pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments or

financial guarantee contracts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Fair value is determined by
reference to active market transactions or using
a valuation technique where no active market
exists. Fair value gain or loss does not include
any dividend or interest earned on these financial
assets. Dividend and interest income is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies in note
3.5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FF ZH=A—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEGFBURME ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.11 Financial assets (continued) BMMBKEE (&)
(ii) Loans and receivables (i) ERXREWERMR

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial BERRERESRAE EESA]
assets with fixed or determinable payments EENREEENEERT S
that are not quoted in an active market. Loans REZHITEMBEE -BEX
and receivables are subsequently measured K PR AR RRE 18 A B PR I 0K
at amortised cost using the effective interest %2 8 35 B AR RUE R RLE B 1B
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised FHE o B AN R
cost is calculated taking into account any BT ESOREBRFE WEE
discount or premium on acquisition and includes BRERFE R 5K AMHEK
fees that are an integral part of the effective HrsBRA BETERRE
interest rate and transaction cost. Gain and losses W BR A% 1 E T s s HH IR R (E
are recognised in profit or loss when the loans B &R BRI N 3% B B S AR 7 B
and receivables are derecognised or impaired as R e

well as through amortisation process.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets (iii) IHHEEZHMEEE
Non-derivative financial assets that do not qualify TG BRI AL H At B 75
for inclusion in any of the other categories of BERZIFTEVBEED
financial assets are classified as available-for-sale BARAHEEMBKEE-

financial assets.

All financial assets within this category are RN FT B s EER R
subsequently measured at fair value. Gains or AR FEFE - ARFEE
losses arising from a change in the fair value, B2 BE (FRIBEWNE3.50
excluding any dividend and interest income which HBERERERER 2 EMAR
are recognised in profit or loss in accordance with BRAMEWAIN) RE M2 HE
the policies set out in note 3.5, is recognised in W ATER I AR AN A 2 7] 85
other comprehensive income and accumulated EHBEEEHRENB LR
separately in the available-for-sale financial st (HEREEE (R T alBE)
assets revaluation reserve in equity, except for WEREEEEZINEHIREE
impairment losses (see the policy below) and BRoN) BRI TERZIEY
foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary BEE B R BERRAE
assets, until the financial asset is derecognised, EFoEEEREK-

at which time the cumulative gain or loss is

reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

82 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



A O N

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Financial assets (continued)

3N BMBEE (&)

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of

impairment.

Obijective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below

its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable
data includes but not limited to adverse changes in the
payment status of debtors in the group and, national
or local economic conditions that correlate with

defaults on the assets in the group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FF ZH=A—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.11 Financial assets (continued)
If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

()

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised
cost has been incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Where the recovery of trade receivables is
considered doubtful but not remote, the
impairment losses for doubtful receivables are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery of trade
receivables is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade
receivables directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.11 Financial assets (continued)
(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, an amount is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss as an
impairment loss. That amount is measured as the
difference between the asset’s acquisition cost
(net of any principal repayment and amortisation)
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on

that asset previously recognised in profit or loss.

Reversals in respect of investment in equity
instruments classified as available-for-sale and
stated at fair value are not recognised in the
profit or loss. The subsequent increase in fair
value is recognised in other comprehensive

income.

3.12 Inventories
Inventories comprise finished goods and consumable
stocks and are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolescence on slow moving items. Cost, calculated
on the first-in, first-out basis, comprises invoiced value
of goods and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present locations and conditions.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
in the ordinary course of business less any applicable

costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes

B I3FIE R 2 ER R

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of

income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences. This involves the
comparison of the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
with their respective tax bases at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well
as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses

and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or

loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not

reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting

date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income

or directly to equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FEGFIBURMEE (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

3.13 Fr 1§ ﬁzﬁfﬁﬁ(k)

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;

and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either (i) the same
taxable entity; or (ii) different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.

3.14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks
and in hand as well as short-term bank deposits with
original maturities of three months or less which are

subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.15 Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have

been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issuance of shares over the par value. Any transaction
costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental

costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.16 Retirement benefit costs and short-term

316 RIKBEA R AR EHMEEER

employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. The Group operates
a defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for those employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries or the
maximum mandatory contribution as required by the
MPF Scheme and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the

rules of the MPF Scheme.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the

time of leave.

BRARBRARAE
1B BB UR4R 3 18 57 ARG 81
e ARERERHIMEQATES S
kPl RTAERERZEBRHMER
e RAREMNE ([RESHE])
B8 28— HAEHFRKEF
HECE BRI REREEART S
—EENLRBESERTE
&l a6l R L YR RIBBTE
M AA T XNEF ABRR
FeEEElcEE —RERAK
SEZEEIFARKE ABLER
HERE - REBEZBEZFTERA
AEBERESFBEREIMHK
B MR T2 REES  EAKEAM
R 2 B B RIEHRERIN - HE
BN 2 5 B AT BERL 305
REAREE -

N

i

EHESREAR
BEFAZFBENEE TEER
R AEEREBEHREALER
EBERERSMES ZFBRZAE
BEFLEE-

FEHAAHFRY RBRERERR
BEEMEE S THER-

P () AT —g——sen 89



20 )1/ s ara B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.17 Share-based employee compensation

BN Utz REME

90

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans to remunerate its employees and

directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the share options awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of

any non-market vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is ultimately recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of share options expected to vest differs
from previous estimates. No adjustment to expense
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share

options ultimately are exercised than originally vested.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to retained

profit/accumulated losses.

CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011

REBEHTARAEE Z O K
MEE USHEHRERERREMHR

B e

18 B IR AR ERIE R AR AT AR £ 1+ 3K
BB 2B RS IRBE D FER
E-WNSRMERSZEREMME
BETE  HEEDNRL A S
MmABREMIETSEBIRE 2

2,
2

PRB AR I 2 ERE LB
Pl 4 BBy 57 8B B FE 1 L B I R
PR B ST 0 7E R AR R e AR PR IR
A0 o 115 55 B8 16k £ 3K EL 4tb 57 8B {5 1 i
AR en BB MRERES
BB BB 2 & ER B
R -NBRERBAPEA FRITEZ
BREBERGAANNEER
e A AP REBRIERRE
ZEREHE AT AR
AlgRERERTAat - R RITE
ZBEBREHBEINREEEE A
TEBERRER 2 FXELH

ﬁiﬁko

FARE AR RE 1T (R IR - R BT AR BB AR A
R 2 R KB AR H(E -
2R BOE R RO WS B A
RITE - PRI IE R B RER

SREEARZ SN, RetEE-



A O N

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Financial liabilities

318 EE

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for

borrowing costs (see note 3.6).

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.

Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. Bank borrowings are
classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability

for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.18 Financial liabilities (continued)

318 EE (&)

Obligation under finance leases

Obligation under finance leases are measured at initial
value less the capital element of lease repayments (see
note 3.10).

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables and accruals) are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost,

using the effective interest method.

3.19 Financial guarantees contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when

due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial

recognition of any deferred income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. TEGFBUORME (&)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.19 Financial guarantees contracts (continued)

B9 MBRREN (&)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 3.20 if and when
it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee and the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the current carrying amount i.e. the amount
initially recognised less accumulated amortisation,

where appropriate.

3.20 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation. All provisions are reviewed at each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current

best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011

BEF——FF ZH =1 —HILFEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EEFFBORME (4)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.21 Segment reporting 3.21 W E

94

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker i.e. the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the

performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they

share a majority of these criteria.

3.22 Non-current assets and disposal groups held

for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded
as met only when the sale is highly probable and the
asset or disposal group is available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for the sale of such assets
or disposal groups. Non-current assets and disposal
groups (other than investment properties) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of the assets’
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or

amortised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.23 Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)  The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.23 Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be

reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are discussed below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (continued)
Impairment of receivables

The policy for the impairment of receivables of the
Group is based on, where appropriate, the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of the receivables and on
the management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these outstandings, including the current creditworthiness
and the past collection history of each debtor. If the financial
conditions of debtors of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,

additional provision for impairment may be required.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 — Ffinancial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement to determine
when an available-for-sale investment is impaired. This
determination requires significant judgement. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment
is less than its cost; and the financial health of and near-term
business outlook for the investee, including factors such as
industry and sector performance, changes in technology and

operational and financing cash flow.

Estimated fair value of investment properties

As disclosed in note 17(a), the Group’s investment properties
were revalued at the reporting date by independent
professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making
the judgement, the Group considers latest completed
transactions and information from current prices in an active
market for similar properties and uses assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at each reporting

date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

5(a). REVENUE 5(a). W 25
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, derived from FR - RAREBEETEEBEMEEER 2K
the Group's principal activities and recognised during the m (ARG EEF)NT

year is as follows:

2011 2010
2% i
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(gg=5)
Health and beauty services B2 M =R RIS 14,891 15,225
Brokerage and commission income " Be RASWA 3,355 2,451

Interest income from money lending and EERBRELLZFBEWA
stock broking 2,192 2,076
Gross rental income from investment properties K EIREWEZ A HEUW A 7,018 7,957
27,456 27,709

5(b). OTHER INCOME 5(b). F At W A

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(gg=5)
Bank interest income RITH BUA 1,032 486
Dividend income from listed investments KA LEWIRE 2R EWA 599 642
Sundry income MU A 34 51
Reversal of impairment on trade receivables B bl ¥ AR FORE 92 -
1,757 1,179
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has identified its operating segments and
prepared segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the Group’s executive
directors for their decisions about resources allocation to
the Group's business components and review of these
components’ performance. The business components in
the internal reporting to the executive directors, the chief
operating decision-makers, are determined following
the Group’s major product and service lines. The Group
is currently organised into the following four operating

segments.
Health and beauty —  Provision of health and beauty
services services in Hong Kong

Provision of commercial and

Money lending
personal loans in Hong Kong

Stock broking —  Provision of stock brokering
services in Hong Kong

Property investments - Investing in commercial and
residential properties for its
rental income potential and
for capital appreciation in
both Macau and Hong Kong

Previously, provision of travel agency services including sale
of travelling and entertainment packages was reported as
a separate segment under “Travel related business”. Due
to the change in classification of income generated from
travel related business as disclosed in note 3.1 as well as
change in information reported internally for the purpose
of assessment of business performance, it is no longer an
operating segment for the current year. In addition, as
mentioned in note 3.1, interest income arising from margin
accounts and settlement handling fee income have been
classified as revenue rather than other income and have
been reported as segment revenue under “Stock broking”
segment. Certain comparative figures in the segment
information for the year ended 31 December 2010 has been
restated accordingly.

B0 W5 R M
for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

Zadegn’

REETHERTARERATEFTUHR
FRENEEXGHEKE D 2 ERDE
ARiga Bl R[22 NEBABEER
AEECHAERLEDHALFERDAE
B-AB2HRTATES (EELERR
B)ZEBHEKREBD IIRBEAEETZE
R IRIGARETE - AERERE D /AT

E R & a8 o

{2 S - GERERERERER

EXBR XRRS

R - GERARERER
FLAER

BREEL - ERARERRE
AR

MERE - REMNRFARE
BZBARREE
MENEBE S
WAENRENR
EE

SR REER IR RIS B A5 & IR AR 42
EEUBYURERIREREEE] 2
D ER o BN ERE) T IR AR EE IS
2R (P EE3. 1 T EE ) LA R BEETAE
EBERBEMEATRE 2ERNEZE  HRN
REZTBREEDER Lo S an b 5
BAFTH - RBAFRERE 2 A B YA K&
EFEBUWAL 7 B IEHE MUK
AN WERERIRELL]HHBET 2
NHWE - BHE_T—ZTF+_A=1+—
AIEFE ZoER 2R FTEAE
EVIK

g () HAd —g——sem 99



20| |\ s B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. srHERER Z'a)
Segment revenue and results pals L& i
The following is an analysis of the Group’'s revenue and RAIZHoHE D AEE 2 Wam R ER
results by reportable segments: ol U
Segment revenue Segment profit
pal: L pal g
2011 2010 2011 2010

—®-—% -T-TF —F——F T 27
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BMFRT  BBTT  BETR  B%TR

(Restated) (Restated)
(&&:5) (gE75)
Health and beauty services 2 FE K& ER R 14,891 15,225 1,856 1,992
Money lending EE 1,791 1,639 1,584 1,431
Stock broking eSS 3,756 2,888 893 223
Property investments MR E 7,018 7,957 14,478 49,717
27,456 27,709 18,811 53,363
Unallocated other income & 7 Bd H 4th Ug A 1,430 1,090
Exchange gains, net M 5 Uk 55 5 5E 1,107 -
Fair value loss on financial ¥Z 2R FEIRENIEZR
assets at fair value RAREE MGEE
through profit or loss ZAFEEE (1,252) (58)
Employee share option EEERKRERX
expense (633) -
Corporate and unallocated AR KRADEHZ
expenses (8,127) (11,569)
Profit before income tax Bk BT 15 B4 AT & A 11,336 42,826
Revenue reported above represented revenue generated TR 2R WAERERINEEF 2
from external customers. W g o
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. srERERE (#)
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment S Eb R & 9 H AU B - WA R
without allocation of central administration costs. Segment EPQ%TTBU?ZZL‘ D EPEE B ER B
results exclude interest income, dividend income, exchange % BA ERH&@/E@?TE&Q&ZE
gains/losses and fair value gain/loss on financial instruments A ﬁ”:fiz,éfﬁiz EZEBMIAR
which arise from assets which are managed on a group TEJ%Z 5518 - D EBELE UTT@%EEE%
basis. Segment results also exclude employee share option PR AR ARIFRE - L HAITEEZ
cost and corporate expenses. This is the measure reported W H*E BEDEERARTE SR
to the executive directors for the purposes of resource 3 o
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Segment assets and liabilities ITHMEERAEE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
(Restated)
(EY)
Segment assets PHEE
Health and beauty services B2 M =R RIS 2,265 2,248
Money lending BE 42,445 42,354
Stock broking fr R4 4 26,538 15,706
Property investments MERE 250,648 294,960
Total segment assets NEEEHETR 321,896 355,268
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHEEZHEEE 16,261 21,399
Financial assets at fair value through BATFEVERRNBRESD
profit or loss BRIEZHMEEE 3,938 5,170
Corporate and unallocated assets NARADEEE 87,379 72,547
Consolidated total assets AEHEERE 429,474 454,384
Segment liabilities PEBEE
Health and beauty services 2 & =R RIS 1,360 1,244
Money lending BE 82 82
Stock broking eSS 7,914 4,978
Property investments YEKE 68,845 103,661
Total segment liabilities DE B EERE 78,201 109,965
Provision for taxation HIEEE 2,203 2,203
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIBAE 9,889 7,093
Corporate and unallocated liabilities RAIRRDEAE 1,375 1,352
Consolidated total liabilities EHaEezE 91,668 120,613
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. srHEBERE (41)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PHEEREME (EF)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MEESHBERRESES D HEEIRM

allocating resources between segments: =

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other - FEEEUSEZATEHH I (A
than available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets HEECHBEE BAFEYE
at fair value through profit or loss and corporate assets; FREERETRECTBEERA
and RIBEERI) &

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other - FMBEEAPEZERIZ2®|H (B
than provision for taxation, deferred tax liabilities and ERE BETHEAERARAER
corporate liabilities. BRON) o

Other segment information H fth 25 ZB & #

Fair value gain on Additions to specified Depreciation and
Interest income investment properties Finance costs non-current assets amortisation
FIEMA RENEZATEKE HERK ERERBEEZRE HEREH
01 2010 201 200 01 2000 201 200 01 2000

-g--% -I2-Z% -%--§ _"T-%f CB--§ _Z-%F ZB--f -T-T% ZE--F _Z-%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BB BETL BT BETT BB ABTT BT BETT BB ABTT

(Restated)

(&%3))

Heath and beauty services ~ BRREZRH - - - - - - I 363 124 306
Money lending e 1,791 1,639 - - - - - - - -
Stock broking REEL 401 437 - - - - 175 2N ] 16
Property investments nERE - - 21,563 51,991 1,328 1,690 15,213 21,604 756 557
2192 2,076 21,563 51,991 1328 1,690 15,395 21,988 21 879

Unallocated FAR 1,032 486 - - 8 17 8 7 50 510
Total &t 3,224 2,562 21,563 51,991 1,336 1,707 15,403 21,995 mn 1,389
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
Geographical information
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets
(i.e. non-current assets excluding financial assets) is based on
the physical location of the assets. The geographical location
of customers is based on the location at which the services

were provided or the goods were delivered.

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of the
specified non-current assets and revenue from external

customers, analysed by the geographical location.

Bk 5 S5 A i e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

s E R (4)
ith & & B

BEFRBDEE (ATREMBEEZI
MBEE) ZWRUERBEEEBRM
EREED - BF 2R E THIREER
HRBAERNEZMLEE D -

NTRIEEHRADEEZREAEBELRA
ShBEPZW Sz (RRAZE D
i) e

Specified Revenue from

non-current assets external customers

EBEFRBDEE REIBEF 2WE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——-F T2 ZB-—F —Z-TF
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
(Restated)
(#&351)
Hong Kong (domicile) A (FriEi) 190,129 156,625 25,774 26,196
Macau B P 52,561 50,070 1,682 1,513
242,690 206,695 27,456 27,709

Information about a major customer

Revenues from one customer of the Group’s property
investments segment amounted to HK$4,200,000 (2010:
HK$4,200,000) which represented 15.3% (2010: 15.2%) of

the Group's revenue.

FRA—BXEEFNESR
RKEAEEMEREDH 2 —BEPZ
U 2% & 7 #4,200,000T (T —ZT 4
78 #4,200,0007T) - HEERAEE W2
153% (ZZE—FF :152%) °
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
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7.

FINANCE COSTS 7. BRI
2011 2010
—E——-F —ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest charges on finance leases BEROFEME 8 17

Interest charges on bank loans not ?#’Ei\EAﬁEWAﬁME%Z

wholly repayable within five years BERZHERXZ 1,328 1,690
1,336 1,707

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings,
including term loans which contain a repayment on demand
clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled repayments

31 December 2011, the interest on bank borrowings which
contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to

HK$1,093,000 (2010: HK$1,437,000).

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

ﬁﬁ%“’ﬁﬁ’iHﬁfEﬁ%%Z%ﬁﬁﬁK 2
BRI E X

mATEZHE EIEER

Hﬁ?ﬁﬁ&x/\taﬁa{ RZEHMER B

dates set out in the loan agreements. For the year ended 2=

—E-—F+ZA=+—HLFE"
HEREREEERZBITEEZFNE
BE1,093,000C (ZE—ZEF K
1,437,0007C) °

8. BB i e A

2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Profit before income tax is arrived at BATEFATEF B,
after charging/(crediting): (5t A) THIEB &P :
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments T 4 b F B R IE 2 # 8
(note 18) (KtzE18) 181 181
Auditors’ remuneration ZERD B & 551 569
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #7125 LR EITE
(note 15) (Kt3E15) 790 1,208
Employee benefit expenses (note 12) EERAMMAZ (FFE12) 19,009 17,611
Rentals received/receivable from investment B EBIRE M ER SR
properties less direct outgoings of HE X HAE®347,0007T
HK$347,000 (2010: HK$277,000) — T E
7 #277,0007T) (6,671) (7,680)
Operating lease charges in respect of: THEEZ LEERAME
— Buildings —EF 3,319 3,213
— Motor vehicles —A/B 570 545
Exchange gains, net PE W Wz 55 (1,107) -

104 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011




e SEONNRNTRN

NN
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Bk 5 S5 A i e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

Fir e 58 B 52

2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
The tax charge comprises: MEZHBE:
— Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax —BNERTIE — BB SN - 2,203
— Deferred tax (note 33) EAERIE (PfFE33) 2,796 6,055
2,796 8,258

For the year ended 31 December 2011, no Hong Kong
profits tax was provided in the financial statements as the
relevant group entities either did not derive any assessable
profit in Hong Kong or had unused tax losses brought
forward to offset against the current year’s assessable profits

in Hong Kong.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, Hong Kong profits
tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profit for that year. Tax on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdiction in which the Group operates,
based on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in

respect thereof.

Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations of Macau, the
subsidiaries in Macau are liable to Macau Profits Tax at the
rate of 12% (2010: 12%).

BE-Z——Ft_A=1t—HLFE"
AR EEERY ERNEFBELEM
FERBU® I - TR B A A TR TR 1B IA
HEAFERBBZERTG A - R 8
R B REREE B RSB

HE_ZT-TFF+_A=+—HLFE"
BENGR TR 2 F E b st R 5
2 16.5% =T Y B s o E b 3h [& [ AR T i A
CREDRBERAEELEMEREER
ZBREED RRRESREEMEE
FAREE-

RBBPITFS AR B AR B - PR PT Z BB
NAEIEE12% (ZE—ZF 1 12%) 2%
R ANE PR S FL -
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9. BB ()
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting s BgtafiZERRE S
profit at applicable tax rate is as follows: BRANT -
2011 2010
—E——F —ZE-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Profit before income tax Fx BT 15 B A A 11,336 42,826
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% NBEBEERE165%
(2010: 16.5%) in Hong Kong FFEZHIE
(ZZ—ZF:165%) 1,870 7,066
Effect of different tax rates of M@ AR EMm A EER
subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions wE 2 TRME 2 & (162) -
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AT o M2 1,975 2,154
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue FERBMAZ BB (1,750) (801)
Tax effect of prior year's unrecognised tax REESHHBAFERER
losses utilised this year MEBE HBELE (563) (1,054)
Tax losses not recognised as deferred tax assets FIERAELEFHIBEE 2
W% E R 1,400 702
Others H Al 26 191
Income tax expense TS X 2,796 8,258

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE 10. A2\ BEA N AN A 4 B i Al
TO THE OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the KRAREB ABIERFELSZERNEIE
Company for the year includes a loss of HK$24,188,000 75124,188,000T 2 BE (Z T —F4F:
(2010: HK$23,473,000) which has been dealt with in the A #523,473,0007T) ' ER AR BB S
financial statements of the Company. KPR
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$7,862,000 (2010: HK$33,862,000) and the weighted
average number of 297,670,000 (2010: 297,670,000)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit attributable to the owners of the Company of
HK$7,862,000 (2010: HK$33,862,000) and the weighted
average of 301,147,000 (2010: 305,570,000) ordinary
shares outstanding during the year, after adjusting for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The weighted
average number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
of diluted earnings per share is calculated based on the
weighted average of 297,670,000 (2010: 297,670,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the weighted
average of 3,477,000 (2010: 7,900,000) ordinary shares
deemed to be issued at no consideration as if all the

Company'’s outstanding share options had been exercised.

Bk 5 S5 A i e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

11. &R EF
EREARZIDIRERARR Z2EE A
JE (5% R 75 #7,862,0000 (& — =&

irﬁéﬁ%aa 862,0007T) M F N B E1T
I297,670,0000% (—ZZFE —F 4
297,670,000&)2%11*%&%’;7%@ -

BREFRFNDBBARBZHEAA
FEAL & A& 7,862,000 (ZE—F
% 78 133,862,0000T) Rt A A#
BECEBRCEEFELARKRZF
W EITIE SN B 301,147,000 (= F
— = £ :305,570,0000% ) & i i% 2 AN 4E
FHEFE - RNAEGREE R AR
Az Em@ beuﬁéﬂ?i’]%mffﬁﬁfﬁima
% 172297,670,000 (=T — T & :

297,670,0008% ) i i H&Zﬂuﬁé%’ﬁﬂu
WA RRZ MARITEERED BITE
A% 4 4% (8 85 17 ,23,477,0008% (= F
—Z4F :7,900,0008% ) LAk 2 MEFH
HErHE -

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 12. 1@ B %A B % (A 45 3 3 1
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 4)
EMOLUMENTS)
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—T4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Directors’ emoluments (note 14(a)) EFHE (M5E14)) 10,309 8,426
Other staff costs: HEfh B TAA:
Wages, salaries and staff benefits ITE HFE&MhETER 7,752 8,139
Commission B 603 719
Retirement benefit costs RRIEFI AN 345 327
19,009 17,611
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S8 AR A A

AEEZAHERAEABHFTRE
B8 58 b1 DR 2 5B B P S E AR
BEREBRAZ%:tE BUEESAR
SR RER1,0007T ([@BEEHPK])
ETREZHREBRE LRESHKE

13. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 13.
The Group’s MPF Scheme contributions are made at 5%
of the employees’ relevant income as defined in the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance up to
a maximum of HK$1,000 per employee per month (“MPF

Contribution”). Contribution for certain employees includes

the aforesaid MPF Contribution of HK$1,000 per employee
plus a corresponding amount of voluntary contribution made
by the respective employee (“Voluntary Contribution”) up
to a maximum of HK$4,000 per employee. The Group's

Voluntary Contributions may be reduced by the contribution

g 8/8%1,000C A REEE B8R
HHF 2 EERE (TBERHER]) 8
EE&ZEM4000T - AEEZ BREMH

FRA] BE R S LB B 705K 2 AR 57 8 A A
%’EEZ#%UHMEE‘&H&ZZT RMRR - RE S

R S BIE R AT 18 F BB

forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to

vesting fully in the contributions. The MPF Contributions are BEEEMA -

fully and immediately vested in the employees as accrued

benefits once they are paid.

Total contributions paid by the Group into the MPF Scheme AEEZRESFEHRFERE (B8R
and recognised as an expense during the year, including EE 2 H3R) BB 466,000 (ZF —
contributions to the directors, amounted to HK$466,000 T F B 8445,000T) ER A FEHER
(2010: HK$445,000). No forfeited contribution is available BRX - MEEMERRAREDAEER
for reducing the Group’s existing level of contributions HRCRBEKE(ZE—FF: &) -

(2010: Nil).
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14 EFELEREHABEMNSE

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM=
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and EmMkERESE N M BEN
payable to the directors are as follows: Ik
Retirement Employee
Salaries and  Discretionary benefit share option

Fees  allowances bonus* costs expense Total
EAK =]
e HEREE s AL BREA BRERX Azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT BT BT BT
Year ended HE-2--F
31 December 2011 TZAZt-HILEE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel SRREE - 1,236 1,448 7 - 2,691
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans KBPELT
Tania - 744 155 4 - 940
Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching BRETE - 1,380 1,448 40 - 2,868
Mr. Wu Binquan REzE4E - 220 36 - - 256
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia SRmTT - 1,380 1,448 33 633 3,494
Independent Non-Executive By E#7EZ
Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit AFAGEE 20 - - - - 20
Mr. Wong Tak Ming Gary BEEBEE 20 - - - - 20
Mr. Au Chi Wai Edward BEEAE 20 - - - - 20
60 4,960 4,535 121 633 10,309
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 14. EHFERHHEMNE &
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (#1)
(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) () E=M< (&)
Salaries Retirement Employee
and  Discretionary benefit  share option
Fees allowances bonus* costs expense Total
e  HeREW T EAT* BAMRA  BRERX st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ABETT  BERTL  ARTR BEETr ARt BETx

Year ended 31 December 2010 HE-Z—ZF+-f

“t+-HLEE
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel LHRREE - 1,141 1,061 7 - 2,209
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans FABLT

Tania - 707 207 38 - 952
Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching TRHTE - 1,260 1,051 40 - 2,351
Mr. Wu Binquan REEE4E - 510 - - - 510
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia SRmTL - 1,260 1,051 33 - 2,344

Independent Non-Executive BUXHTES

Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit FABELRE 20 - - - - 20
Mr. Wong Tak Ming Gary HERLE 20 - - - - 20
Mr. Tang Man Ching BxmsxsE 20 - - - - 20
60 4,878 3,370 118 - 8,426
* The discretionary bonus is performance-related with the * MBEREAREETGEE 2 £EHR
basis determined by the board of directors. FIEHE o
Mr. Wu Binquan resigned as an executive director with RBELEEEHARITES A=
effect from 1 October 2011. T——F+HA-—HRER-
Mr. Tang Man Ching resigned and Mr. Au Chi Wai BXHAEEEHAERBEERELED
Edward was appointed as an independent non- BZAARBUNITESE HZZE
executive director with effect from 1 January 2011. ——F&—HA—BREM-
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14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (continued)

None of the directors waived or has agreed to
waive emoluments in respect of the years ended 31
December 2011 and 2010.

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and
2010, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join the Group or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group include four (2010: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
above and the emoluments paid and payable to the
remaining one (2010: one) highest paid individual are

as follows:

14. EHFH K EH

Bk 5 S5 A i e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

(EEZUNISTE

(#1)

(a)

(b)

EEME (&)
BE_T——FRk-_T-ZTF+_
A=ZT—RLEFE YEEENRE
HFAEREEME -

BE-_T——FR-_FT-FTF+=
AZ+—BLEFE AREIRT
NERME TES ER/MARE
B MAREEZZ 2/ HER
BERLZ FEE -

EEREHMAL

BE-_T——Ft+t-A=+t—HL
FE AEELEREFMALE
RO (ZE-TF 0RK)E=
Efec#@NEX 2o B
LREMBT B (ZE—FF: —
Z)BEEHFMALZMES T

2011 2010

—B——fF —E-2F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R REAMBEF 731 725
Retirement benefit costs ERRE TR A 36 33
767 758

The emoluments of these remaining one (2010: one) BT —Z2(ZE—ZF: —7)&%

highest paid individual fell within the following band:

SHMALTZMSBENT

Number of individuals

AE
2011 2010
—E——fF —Z5F
Emolument bands Bl < &3 (2
Nil = HK$1,000,000 T Z A #1,000,0007T 1 1
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for the year ended 31 December 2011

BE_F—— A ZH=A—HIFEE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y3~ W Bt

Group AEE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment vehicles Total
Gk BH-£B
BF NELE RBAERE HE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT BT
At 1 January 2010 RZE-FF5—-H—H
Cost AR 4,113 3,630 4,221 1,336 13,300
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (109) (2,572) (3,649) (736) (7,066)
Net carrying amount EEFE 4,004 1,058 572 600 6,234
Year ended 31 December 2010 Bz-Z-T&
+-A=+-A
EE
Opening net carrying amount ENHRERE 4,004 1,058 572 600 6,234
Additions NE - 202 254 - 456
Depreciation e (109) (440) (241) (418) (1,208)
Closing net carrying amount FREMEFE 3,895 820 585 182 5,482
At 31 December 2010 A\ZE-FF
t-A=t-A
Cost %S 4,113 3,832 4,309 686 12,940
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (218) (3,012) (3,724) (504) (7,458)
Net carrying amount RHFE 3,895 820 585 182 5,482
Year ended 31 December 2011 Bz-gz-—-f§
+=A=+-H
LEE
Opening net carrying amount ENRERE 3,895 820 585 182 5,482
Additions NE - - 196 - 196
Depreciation e (108) (252) (249) (181) (790)
Closing net carrying amount FREEFE 3,787 568 532 1 4,888
At 31 December 2011 RZE-——-%
t=A=t-A
Cost YA 4,113 3,832 4,488 686 13,119
Accumulated depreciation ZEHHNE (326) (3,264) (3,956) (685) (8,231)
Net carrying amount EEFE 3,787 568 532 1 4,888
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 3% - W Bt (%)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2011, certain buildings with RZE——F+=ZA=+—8" ﬁ%ﬁ@%"]
carrying amount of approximately HK$3,154,000 (2010: BE®E3 154,000 (ZE—EF 8K
HK$3,244,000) were pledged to secure the banking facilities 3,244,00070) 2 & TEFE f’EZ%ﬁ%
granted to the Group as further detailed in note 29. BRBFITEECER BEE—FLHER

R FE29 ©

The carrying amounts of buildings and prepaid land lease AEBEFREM T HEERBZERR
payments of the Group are analysed as follows: BATET:
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——f%F —E-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
In Macau under medium-term leases FORPIBIBPERE L E 8,831 9,084
In Hong Kong under medium-term leases NEBRBPIBELNFE 1,268 1,304
10,099 10,388
Buildings gF 3,787 3,895
Prepaid land lease payments (note 18) A L EFIA
(KzE18) 6,312 6,493
10,099 10,388
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. 7 HtJE 2 Wl 2 e 4k
Company
b NN
2011 2010
—g-—& —T-=fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Unlisted shares, at cost LT - IR 86,218 86,218
Less: Provision for impairment R E (36,418) (33,000)
49,800 53,218
During the year, the directors reviewed the carrying amount RER EL2EZSHBRAIEE 2%
of the interests in subsidiaries with reference to the business % EBEFCEZRMBRAR 2R ZRE
operated by these subsidiaries. An impairment loss of E-RERN  HEREIELE3,418,0007T
approximately HK$3,418,000 (2010: nil) was recognised in (ZZE—ZF B ERERAZEREREA
the Company’s profit or loss during the year. R e
As at 31 December 2011, the Company had direct and R-ZE——FE+-A=+—H KAQAE
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: BTYMBARzEERBERER:
Percentage
Place of of interest
incorporation and Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
NN
MR FEEER
DEER EAER TEEXEBRRQE MR ERITRAHE ZED
Held directly:
EERE:
Century Legend British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 63,000 Ordinary shares 100%
Investments Limited limited liability Hong Kong of US$0.01 each
company
HEEEREERRA RBEUES REBREREER FREEVIETLZ 100%
BRATE 63,000 & A%
Century Legend Hong Kong, limited Provision of properties 1,000,000 Ordinary 100%
Management Limited liability company management services in shares of HK$1 each
Hong Kong
e REERERAR BB -BRAT REBRMEMEERRE FREEEBITZ 100%

1,000,000 0% 3 8@ %
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

16. M JE 2wl 2 hE 2 (4)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had direct and

indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: (continued)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Place of
incorporation and

(&)

Principal activities and

RZE——F+_F=+—H 4A27
BETIMBAR s BEZ REERER:

Percentage
of interest

Particulars of held by the

Name of company kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
PN
AL ER Fris Bz
DAL AR TEXBRQEHE BRTREFER ZEAL
Held directly:
EEEE:
Century Legend British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 Ordinary share of 100%
Entertainment Limited limited liability Hong Kong Us$1
company
R RREBR AR KBRUES REBREREEK EE1ETZREBK 100%
BRAE
Held indirectly:
MERH:
Century Legend Finance Hong Kong, limited Provision of commercial 10,000,000 Ordinary 100%
Limited liability company and personal loans in shares of HK$1 each
Hong Kong
HRERREBRDA & BRAA REBRUBER BREEES1ITZ 100%
MAER 10,000,0008% & i %
Century Legend Securities  Hong Kong, limited Stock broking in Hong 20,000,000 100%
Limited liability company Kong (2010:10,000,000)
Ordinary shares of
HK$1 each
HEEREESFERAA BB ARRAT REEREREZLLRE FREEABITZ 100%
20,000,000%
(ZF—%4F:
10,000,000/ ) & i %
Century Legend Strategic ~ Hong Kong, limited Investment holding in 10,000,000 Ordinary 100%
Investments Limited liability company Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each;
5,000,000 Non-voting
deferred shares* of
HK$1 each
R RERBIRE & BRAA REBREREEK BREEES1ITZ 100%
ARRDA 10,000,000/ & & ;
BREEES1ITZ
5,000,000/% #IZ =1
IESERR AR *
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2011

BE_F—— A ZH=A—HIFEE

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

16. M JE 2wl 2 hE 2 (4)

(continued)
As at 31 December 2011, the Company had direct and RZE——F+-_A=+—H8 &XRFA
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: (continued) BAETIMBRAR s EE REZEEZ:
(&)
Percentage
Place of of interest

incorporation and

Principal activities and

Particulars of held by the

Name of company kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
NN
AL ER Fris B Rz
DAL ENER TEXBRQEHE BRTREFER 2B
Held indirectly:
MERE:
Hong Kong Macau Trading  Hong Kong, limited Trading of general 100 Ordinary shares of 100%
Limited liability company merchandises in Hong HK$1 each
Kong
BREZHHERAF BB ARRAT REERE-RERES BREEES1ITZ 100%
100/% & @B
CL Entertainment Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited Inactive 10,000 Ordinary shares 100%
liability company of HK$1 each
RIREFR AT BB ARRAT EEaX BREEESITZ 100%
10,000/ % i i
Headquarters Limited Hong Kong, limited Operation of a hair salon 150,000 Ordinary 55%
liability company under the brand name shares of HK$1 each
of "Headquarters” in
Hong Kong
BBAERAR BB BRRAT REBARIE FREESBITZ 55%
[Headquarters | & &5 150,000 & 8 AR
#E
Century Legend Properties  Hong Kong, limited Investment holding and 1 Ordinary share of 100%
Limited liability company property investments in HK$1
Hong Kong
R EMERRAR & BRAA REBREREERK mEABITZ 100%
MEHRE 1R & AR
Max Rise Investments Hong Kong, limited Investment holding and 1 Ordinary share of 100%
Limited liability company property investments in HK$1
Hong Kong
MBREZERR AT BB ARRAT REBREREERK HEEBITZ 100%
MEKRE 1S @ Pk
Hong Kong Macau Travel ~ Hong Kong, limited Provision of travel agency 500,000 Ordinary 100%
Limited liability company services in Hong Kong shares of HK$1 each
BRIREARA EE BRRAF REBREIKITH RS BREEEEITL 100%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(continued)

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

16.

As at 31 December 2011, the Company had direct and

indirect interests in the following subsidiaries: (continued)

Place of
incorporation and

Principal activities and

Bk 5 S5 A i e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

i B g o W] 2 gk (A

RZB——F+_RA=+—HB ARQF
BAETHMNBRRZEERMERS:
(%)

Percentage

of interest
Particulars of held by the

Name of company kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
PN
AL ER Fris Bz
DAL AR TEXBRQEHE BRTREFER ZEAL
Held indirectly:
MERH:
Century Legend Properties  Macau, limited liability Investment holding in MOP25,000 100%
(Macau) Limited company Macau
g R E ORFT) P BRAE RBFIREEREEKR R F9%25,0007C 100%
BRRAE
CL San Kin Yip Property Macau, limited liability Property investments in MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited company Macau
TRHIEXMERE B BRAA RRFIEEDNERE P9 #25,0007T 100%
BRRAE
CL MLO12 Property Macau, limited liability Property investments in MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited company Macau
HEMLO12M %K E B BRAA RRFIEEDNERE JEF9625,0007T 100%
BRRAE
CL Pawn, Watch & Macau, limited liability Inactive MOP25,000 100%
Jewellery Limited company
HREMERKE B BRAA EEEX P9 #25,0007T 100%
BRRAE
*  The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to * EBERIRECROTR EERETURE

dividends or to participate in any distribution in winding up.

They carry no rights to receive notice of or to attend or vote at

any general meeting.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

ok 705 MR B 2 BT 9 )k - I AR R UER
EARRAGEBRESHEFREIRE L

BE-

MEMNBRRNFRESETEMNEESE
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

17(a). INVESTMENT PROPERTIES a). BEW

Group

KEE
2011 2010
2% —E-TF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RAZEREE: 194,900 198,700
Additions NE 15,207 21,539
Net change in fair value N EEHFE 21,563 51,991

Reclassified as assets classified as held B EARBIEREZEE

for sale (note 17(b)) (BI5E17(b)) - (77,330)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZA=+—BZKEE 231,670 194,900

AEBZEEMERAAFERET
FTE RIREEMENBETE=T AR
B WA EE—THBEHNHE

The Group’s investment properties are measured using
the fair value model and are leased to third parties under

operating leases to earn rental income, further details of

which are included in note 34(a).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31
December 2011 by BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent
qualified professional valuer, on an open market, existing
use basis. The valuation was arrived at by reference to
comparable market transactions and where appropriate, on

the basis of capitalisation of net income.

As at 31 December 2011, certain investment properties
with carrying amount of approximately HK$208,090,000
(2010: HK$178,100,000) were pledged to secure the
banking facilities granted to the Group as further detailed

in note 29.
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34(a) °

BUABEREEMEMABERLFGEA
BRARER -_E——F+-A=+—H
HERARMSZATFRREESAEE
ZREMEFETENN G - ZEHEEDIE
S2BABLETER S M (HER) A
FWABE AR EEHETT -

RZZE——F+=_A=+—8 KHEEA
#)/7#8%208,090,0007T (—Z T —ZT4F
7#1178,100,0007T) 2B TREWMED
ERREEERRITEECER AH
B HRM 29 -
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

17(a). INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17(a). B E W ()

The Group's interests in investment properties at their REERREYE B IREEES T
carrying amounts are analysed as follows: LU
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
In Hong Kong, under long-term leases REE BERABENFE 188,370 154,800
In Macau, under medium-term leases FORPT - IRIBFREIEORESR 43,300 40,100
231,670 194,900
17(b). ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR 17(b). 43 % Fe 4 th B 2 B
SALE
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——fF —_E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Investment properties (note 17(a)) BEWE ([E17()) - 77,330
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group HE-ZE-ZTF+-_A=+—HLFE"
entered into agreements to dispose certain investment REBFTVHBALEE TUREER
properties located in Hong Kong held under long term BERPHEABEZIREYE BRERE
leases at the total cash consideration of HK$77,330,000. A5 ¥77,330,0007T - ZEWMEZHED
The disposal of those properties were completed during RZE——F5E
2011.
As at 31 December 2010, an investment property with RZZE—ZEF+ZA=+—8" KHEEYD
carrying amount of approximately HK$70,000,000 were 778 %70,000,000 2 REMECIER
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the REFBERRITEECER FlHE—2F
Group as further detailed in note 29. FEIBE AT TE29 ©
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
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18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FAfT AL K IE
Group
rEE
2011 2010
2% —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Opening net carrying amount FHERMFE 6,493 6,674
Amortisation charge for the year REEHIHER (181) (181)
Closing net carrying amount FREMEFE 6,312 6,493
As at 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H
Cost (DN 6,858 6,858
Accumulated amortisation g 3| (546) (365)
Net carrying amount BREFE 6,312 6,493
Analysed as: DA -
Non-current assets ERBEE 6,132 6,313
Current assets MENEE 180 180
6,312 6,493
At 31 December 2011, certain of the Group’s interest in the R-ZE——F+_-_A=+—H8 &Xx&EEH
above leasehold land with carrying amount of HK$5,678,000 15 85 [ (H & 75 15,678,000 (2 —F
(2010: HK$5,841,000) was pledged to secure the banking F:EME5,841,00000) 2 EH FMAE L
facilities granted to the Group as further detailed in note 29. R A EAEEERBITEE 2EMA -

BRAE — S F BN 29
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) 19. FEW~ (REAT) B B8 A W) sk o
SUBSIDIARIES
Company
¥ NN
2011 2010
—B——fF —_E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE W B BB A R FRIE 412,804 400,946
Less: Provision for impairment OB (272,248) (251,202)
140,556 149,744
During the year, the directors reviewed the carrying amount RERN K2EZEMBRRIMEE 2%
of the amounts due from subsidiaries with reference to the % EECBERERMNEBARNRIE KRR
business operated by these subsidiaries. An impairment loss B RFRNRERELEE21,046,000
of approximately HK$21,046,000 (2010: HK$23,417,000) T (ZE—FF:5%23,417,0007) B
was recognised in the Company’s profit or loss during the RARE 2B EAER -
year.
Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- FEU (FERT) B B A B R IE A -
free and repayable on demand. BB RBRENREEE
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 20. A4 R E
ASSETS
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—B——fF —_E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, REBE LM ZRAIRE -
at fair value BRAFE 16,261 21,399
The Group's listed equity investments in Hong Kong are AEEREB LM 2BRARE D RBE
held for long-term and are non-trading in nature. Fair values £ BIFEEME - Bkt sE38.8F7 i -
of these listed equity investments have been measured ZELTRAREZ AFEE TEEF
as described in note 38.8. During the year, the fair value A-BEERAIHEE 2B EESMHE
loss recognised directly in available-for-sale financial R A FEEEY RABS5,138,0005T
assets revaluation reserve amounted to approximately ZE—TF : #%636,0007T) °

HK$5,138,000 (2010: HK$636,000).

21. LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. B

Group

TEE
2011 2010
. —TFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Gross loan receivables — unsecured FEUNE R e RE — I 43,652 43,728
Less: Provision for impairment R E B (1,700) (1,700)
Net carrying amount BREHE 41,952 42,028
Less: Amounts due within one year W — AR EIFEE (10,211) (41,833)
Amounts due after one year —F 1% B HREE 31,741 195

122 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



ABan. NN

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued)

The loan receivables bear interest at fixed annual rates
ranging from 4% to 12% (2010: 4% to 12%). The
repayment terms of the loans are negotiated on an individual
basis. The maturity profile of the loan receivables at the
reporting date, which is analysed by the remaining periods to

their contractual maturity dates and is net of provision, is as

21.

B A B R i
for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

JE W £k (7))
ﬁ@ﬂﬁz%%ﬂﬁi@frum%éu% (ZZ
—ZF 4% E12% ) FTE e B E R
REARNELEZERES °E’<‘$ﬁi HE - R
ERZHEERERIZRA T ERB B
ZHIGHBRINBRBEBHEES T T

follows:

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —ZE-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
On demand BEREER 5 6
Three months or less ZEAAA 50 30,031
Over three months but less than one year AN LEE—FR 10,156 11,796
In one to two years —EMF 31,152 134
Over two years MF A £ 589 61
41,952 42,028
Included in the Group's loan receivables are loans with AEBZEKRERTBIEEEREL B
carrying amounts of approximately HK$5,000 (2010: 5,000 (Z & — 24 : £ %6,0007) 2
HK$6,000) which are past due aged over 180 days at the B ZERIENRE R BaAEi®180

reporting date and for which the Group has not provided
impairment. Loan receivables that are past due but not
impaired relate to several independent borrowers who
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors believes that no recognition of
impairment loss is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in their credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
Loans receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of borrowers with whom the Group has
developed long-term business relation and by whom there
was no recent history of default. Accordingly, the directors
consider that impairment provision is not necessary in
respect of those receivables.

B BN SR EE B AF R ERE - E 8
HMERBEZBREERTEAEEET
BIYERABR ZEBRAZEELE
RifF-BERKR EFHE ARERE
EERUESEARY  HRFHBERERD
AEHRE - Bt HAERREREE A
5 B30 8 5L A% AR RR AT A A - AR
BHSRE 2 B E R T EE TERA
B AEECEARERABRRRYR
T RAR & B BB ST B0 48 RREC %
At - EERBBAZFRBEFIAFEL
AR 1 o

NS
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

22. INVENTORIES 22. 8
Group
KEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Finished goods, at cost RIPK b - RN - 1
Consumable stocks, at cost ATAGFEE  EAA 70 110
70 111
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and BB 687,000 (ZE—TF B
included in cost of sales amounted to HK$687,000 (2010: 668,000L) 2 F EM AR AR I
HK$668,000). FFASHER A
23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. ¥ PAE D) IR B 48 2 iR R
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS Bl M E B
Group
REE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong held REBFRHEEE 2 ETRA
for trading, at fair value K& EAFE 3,938 5,170
The fair value of listed equity investments have been FARAKRE 2 A FEDLHE (AW

measured as described in note 38.8. 38.8)
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND B 3 T At WOR AR S BN AR
PREPAYMENTS IE
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—B-—-F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Trade receivables R EIAR K 14,019 9,313
Less: Provision for impairment BB (281) (373)
Trade receivables, net EEEWENFEE 13,738 8,940
Other receivables and deposits HiEWERERERES 2,899 2,586
16,637 11,526
The Group's trade receivables at the reporting date mainly RERM REE S ERWEREE
represent the receivable balances in respect of the Group's REAEBERELLEB 2 F‘EJ‘EH&BE%(
stock broking business. The Group allows a credit period BE AEBLATHESHEARSEE
up to the settlement dates of their respective transactions ALz EEH (L%ij\”%aﬁﬂéﬁﬁ
(normally two business days after the respective trade dates) Ee%B8) HREREKFREFPFIEARE
except for margin client receivables which are repayable on SRR (EE o
demand.
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND w35 T Al WKL ik B T A 3k
PREPAYMENTS (continued) IE (#)

REE A & RUERR (FOBRIRE R
B 2RI (IHBEERH)WT:

The ageing analysis (based on invoice date) of the trade
receivables, net of provision for impairment, as at the

reporting date is as follows:

Group

rEE
2011 2010
— —ZT-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Repayable on demand — margin receivables* AIE B KR EE — BT RRIE* 4,372 1,411
0-30 days 0£30H 8,226 6,359
31-60 days 31260H 225 242
61-90 days 61290H 92 143
Over 90 days 90H M E 823 785
13,738 8,940
* The Group holds certain listed equity securities of clients as * RE @#—;EE)EZ%:FJ:HTHQ$ B 5 DA

collateral over these trade receivables. EALEEFRBERZERR-

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied the recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against the trade
receivables directly. The movement in the provision for

impairment of trade receivables is as follows:

BRZEREBURR ZREREET KB
AR T AR ER - BRI A SR B A 5 U B AR 5K
ZHERER HEBRTEERMRER
& W BR SR 35 o R TR MR BR BB R 2
BT

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Balance at 1 January N—A—BZ#%%E 373 373
Reversal of impairment losses VERENSEi=E4E] (92) -
Balance at 31 December R+ZA=+—B82#%E 281 373
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group reviews trade receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual
and collective basis. Included in the above provision
for impairment of trade receivables is a provision for
individually impaired trade receivables of HK$281,000
(2010: HK$373,000) with a gross carrying amount of
HK$418,000 (2010: HK$598,000). The individually impaired
trade receivables relate to customers that were in default or

delinquent in payments.

The ageing analysis (based on due date) of the trade
receivables that are past due but are not considered to be

impaired is as follows:

Bk 5 S5 A i e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

B 36 B H: At JRE W R ik S TELASH 3k
TH (#])
REREBE  AEBIZER REEEE

EHAEBURERZREREZ U L&
JELISZEEMZMET%%JT FE781#281,000
T (= T4 ##373,0000T) 2 A
%IJWEZ%%%LI&EE%«%{%'H%@EEE
BABEAL18,000L (ZE—FF
598,0007T ) © & Bl &l {8 2 & 25 FE W BR X

HE RSB R EF B -

B8 HHE R AR BB E 2 & 5 B WK 5K
ZHREDH (RBIBA )T

r-;;
N\

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—e--5 —T-%H
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
1 — 30 days past due #EI1E30H 8,226 6,359
31 - 60 days past due BHEA31260H 225 242
61 — 90 days past due #HI61290H 92 143
Over 90 days past due # HA90H LA |+ 823 785
9,366 7,529

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired i K 380 B 5 R BB 2 & 5 E W BR SR ER AT
BYEHRXERLBcETOMEFRE

was no recent history of default. g o

relate to a number of diversified customers for whom there

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to customers that have a good payment record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered full
recoverable.

B HHE R R (B 2 & 5 8 AR R0 B Y
HEAKERBERIFNREHEZEF - 1RIE
BELR EEERE BANZETER
EHRERE REAEEERMEEX
HE) R FERIDBE R 2EURE -
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25. TRUST BANK BALANCES HELD ON 25. & P A Rt AT Si R
BEHALF OF CUSTOMERS
The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with a REBENRERZELLERR R—FBE
licensed bank in Hong Kong to hold clients’ monies in FEROTHEBELEIEEPUERER
conducting its stock brokering business. In the consolidated FIE - REEE M BARERF  FEBEE
statement of financial position, the Group has classified PRESBEARBDEEETREPBAELZ
the clients’ monies as trust bank balances held on behalf BEFEIRITHAR  WNRENBEE THERE
of customers under current assets and recognised the HXE)EZ*EFEM¥FE1TJLEE,?A°$EIEI
corresponding trade payables to the respective customers REBEPHIBFRIL 2 S M2 HFE
under current liabilities. The Group is allowed to retain some WETNBRAREPRIBRERNEE &7 -

or all of the interest earned on the clients’" monies. The
Group is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to settle its

own obligations.

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. Bl LBlEFHY
Cash and cash equivalents include the following: RekReEBYWRIETISIE:
The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010

—g¥--% -T -TF —g-—-F - IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETL  EMTR  AETR

Cash at bank and in hand R7T & FHIA & 20,744 21,859 3,181 10,737
Short-term bank deposits %2 HISR1TE 85,868 67,205 80,118 60,005
Cash and cash equivalents E& MRS HEY 106,612 89,064 83,299 70,742
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26. Ble RBlLE&EFHEHY (H)
(continued)
The Group The Company
AEME b /N
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B-—-f -—T-Tf =ZB——F -T-T4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T BET T BT T
Denominated in: AR5 EEEHE
RMB AR 24,907 2,986 24,888 2,959
Hong Kong Dollars i 81,600 85,722 58,408 67,711
US Dollars e 16 85 3 72
MOP SEL P 62 243 - -
Other currencies HEih g 27 28 - -
106,612 89,064 83,299 70,742

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term bank deposits are placed
with banks with maturity periods range from 3 months to 6
months (2010: range from 2 months to 6 months) and earn
interest income at market interest rates ranging from 0.5%
10 2.4% (2010: 0.85% to 1.25%) per annum.

TRADE PAYABLES 27.

At the reporting date, the ageing analysis (based on invoice
date) of the Group's trade payables is as follows:

BITHRE SRS EBITERAENFEF
KB M ERITF R AITF AN R 1T - B
HEENT3@EAZE6ER (ZE—ZF:
2@ A =6EA) '&f?ﬁi%?’r@ﬂ‘?&
BFH05%%E2.4% —ZF: 0.85%
Z=1.25% ) BEELF E\Hﬁz)\o

B 2R AT R K
RBEAM AEBZEERAIRRZER
RO (REEASMMT

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZTF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Repayable on demand — Trust bank balances for REREE-—HRELTFNZ

funds placed by customers A& ZEtRITAR 1,122 841
0-30 days 0£30H 6,570 3,852
31-60 days 31260H 53 36
7,745 4,729
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28. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE 28. Bl AH A AR I
LEASES
The analysis of the obligations under finance leases is as BREHLEAESTHAT
follows:
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Total minimum lease payments: =EMHEHERE:
Due within one year —FREIH 47 114
Due in the second to fifth year inclusive FEFEFRF
(BREREMT)ZH - 47
47 161
Less: Future finance charges W ARKREE B R (1 9)
Present value of finance lease obligations A QA ERE 46 152
Present value of finance lease obligations: BhE A AR EIR(E
Due within one year included in current —FREHIIERE
liabilities afE 46 106
Due in the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEZFRLF (BHE
included in non-current liabilities BEME) IS
E e N=R - 46
46 152
The Group entered into finance leases in respect of the REEFRBEATBEITVRMERLY -HEA
purchase of motor vehicles. The lease period is 5 years and hFE - REREBOTOBR I FHEE
interest rate is 3.75% per annum at the contract date of 3.75% o AW BB KA M AT
the respective finance leases. The leases have no terms of LR o

renewal or any contingent rental provisions.
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29. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED) 29. AT (FHKH)
At 31 December 2011, the Group's bank borrowings are RZE——F+ZA=1+—0 Fr&ER
repayable as follows: TEEZEEBROT
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Current liabilities I R=Ri
Portion of term loans from banks due AR —FRNEERZRIT
for repayment within one year EHE R B 4,688 5,802
Portion of term loans from banks due BERERERERZ
for repayment after one year which contain AR —FREEZRIT
a repayment on demand clause EHER 2 HBH 50,707 77,133
55,395 82,935
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Portion of term loans due for repayment ER—FREZEZTH
after one year e aith) 5,861 6,413
61,256 89,348
The bank borrowings, including the term loans repayable on BTEE(BRAEKERKEBECEHRE
demand, are carried at amortised cost. None of the portion )?ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁ%$§uﬁ§ BEEBEN —F
of term loan due for repayment after one year which contain BraeREREEET (MALD
a repayment on demand clause (and therefore classified as *EE,,,.LEJJEL)Z,,\E/\ FREBZEH
current liability) is expected to be settled within one year. BERER D o
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29. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED) 29. |ITHE

(continued)

132

The analysis of the Group's bank borrowings by scheduled AEBEZRITEBERFEEBNETZS
repayment is as follows: HIBCEN
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Portion of term loan due for repayment HAR—FRNEEZTHER
within one year Z B, 4,688 5,802
Portion of term loans due for repayment AR —FREBZTHE
after one year (note (a)) 288 (MiFE@))
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFERN 4,801 5,918
After 2 years but within 5 years MERERFR 15,102 18,485
After 5 years hF & 36,665 59,143
61,256 89,348
Notes: B 5
(@) The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment (a) HEERNREBEDNREBEERBHZMSB AT
dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of ZEER %@Efﬁﬂﬁéﬂﬂﬂ&gfﬂéﬁ
any notice for repayment on demand. WA
(b)  The Group's bank borrowings as at the reporting date, all by RBEEH AREELHZERRHA
denominated in HK$, bear interest at HIBOR plus 1.2% to BEAZROTLHEZERME AEBEZ
1.3% (2010: 1.1% to 1.3%) per annum for loans arranged in BITHEE (HABEBEE) - HRIRES
Hong Kong and at prime rate minus 1.15% to 1.75% (2010: BITREFREMFEI12%E1.3% (=
1.15% to 1.75%) per annum for loans arranged with the —ZTF11%E1.3% ) RIEHESR
banks in Macau. TR EET115%E1.75% (ZE—F
F:1.15%E1.75% 5T B e
() The Group's bank borrowings are secured by certain of the (0 AEEZRITEENNETEEEREBEL

Group’s property, plant and equipment, investment properties,
assets classified as held for sale and prepaid land lease
payments with a total carrying amount of approximately
HK$216,922,000 (2010: HK$257,185,000),
guarantee given by the Company (note 37) to the extent of
HK$61,256,000 (2010: HK$89,348,000).

and corporate
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30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. JBRA
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.2 each
BREERE2IZEEBR
Number Nominal
of shares value
’HEE H{E
HK$'000
BT T
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 RZE—=FF—HF—H
and 31 December 2011 —E-EF+A=1+—HRK
—E——%+-A=t+—H 2,000,000,000 400,000
Issue and fully paid: ERTRABR:
At 1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 R-ZE—=FF—H—H"
and 31 December 2011 —E-EE+_A=1+—HRK
—E-——%+-A=t+—H 297,669,597 59,534
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31.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009 for
the primary purpose of providing incentives or rewards
to the participants who have contributed to the Group
and encouraging participants to work towards enhancing
the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
board of directors may, at its discretion, offer to directors,
employees of any member of the Group, any advisors and
service providers of any member of the Group, options to
subscribe for shares in the Company at a price not less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant of the
option; (ii) the average of the closing prices of the shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share. A nominal consideration of HK$1
is payable on acceptance of the grant of the options by each
of the relevant grantees. The options vest on the condition
that the grantee is a participant of the Share Option Scheme
from the date of options grant to the commencement date
of the exercisable period of the options and the participant is
not required to achieve any performance targets before any
share options grander under the Share Option Scheme can

be exercised.

The share-based employee compensation is to be settled by
the issue of the Company’s ordinary shares. The Group has
no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the
share options other than by issuing the Company’s ordinary

shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (continued)

On 8 April 2009, the Company offered to grant share
options to certain executive directors and an employee
of the Company (subject to their respective acceptance)
to subscribe for a total of 23,813,565 ordinary shares of
HK$0.20 each in the share capital of the Company, subject
to the Share Option Scheme to be adopted at the annual
general meeting of the Company. The Share Option Scheme
had been duly adopted by the shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting on 22 May 2009 and the

grantees accepted the share options on the same date.

On 21 April 2011, the Company offered to grant share
options to Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia, an executive director
and an associate of substantial shareholders of the Company
to subscribe for a total of 2,970,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.20 each in the capital of the Company under the Share
Option Scheme. The grantee accepted the share options on

the same date.

Mr. Wu Binquan has resigned as an executive director of
the Company with effect from 1 October 2011 and the
shares options granted to him for subscribing for 7,441,739
ordinary shares of HK$0.20 each in the share capital of the

Company has been forfeited on the same date.

31.

Bk 5 S5 A i e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

ey S AF 2 A B it (48)

RZZZNFMANE  REREAQFR
RBFRG RN BIREE - RAAF]
BERAARETHRTEER —EEE (R
RERBEMBERS) XL BRE AR
fE & 423,813,565 AN A AR A F K
HEZE0.20TT 2 TR - R A RIRER
TEEAFAEA -+ ZHZRERBAFKX
g FE ERMBRIERT S REARAR
PR B B 4% B AR 4

W-ZZE——FmMA=-+—H ~$E%J§E§H§EE*
e ARFREMEBHZ LT (KRAF
—RPTEERFERR 2 %ﬁ/\i)?ﬁ
BB AR #E - LARR BB & #£2,970,00008 A 2
BIRA R R EEEB0. 20T 2 LAk -
ZE YN ACE=E3 Y18

REEEECBHEARTRTESE A=
T——FtA-RBER MRTHEUR
887,441,739 AR R IR A R EAEE
#0220z B MR BAAED A A
R UL

P (EE) AT —g——eam 135

e SEONNRNTRN

NN



20 )1/ s ara B

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
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31. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 31. DAy > AF 2 1@ B i fE (47)
COMPENSATION (continued)

Movements of the share options during the reporting period R EHRAEREZZBREMET

and their weighted average exercise price are as follows: BITEENT
2011 2010
S —E-%%

Weighted Weighted

average average

Number exercise Number exercise

of option price of option price

AR I

BREHE THE BREHE T8

HK$ HK$

B ks

Outstanding at 1 January R—B—BEEXITE 23,813,565 0.310 23,813,565 0.310

Granted R 2,970,000 0.395 - -

Forfeited 2R (7,441,739) 0.310 - -

Outstanding at 31 December ®W+—-A=+—H

M AR 19,341,826 0.323 23,813,565 0.310
Exercisable 31 December R+ZA=+—H
AfTE 19,341,826 0.323 23,813,565 0.310

136 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011



7N D SN

f@\\

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted on 22 May
2009 and 21 April 2011 were approximately HK$4,284,000
and HK$633,000 respectively, and was determined using
the Binomial Option Pricing Model by an independent
professional valuer at the date of grant. The following
assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of the

share options:

Grant date 21 April 22 May

2011 2009
Exercise price HK$0.395 HK$0.310
Expected volatility 118.85% 122.09%
Expected life of share options 10 years 10 years
Dividend yield Nil Nil
Risk-free interest rate 2.67% 2.46%

The underlying expected volatility was determined by
reference to historical data, calculated based on expected
life of share options, which may not necessarily be the actual

outcome.

Total employee share option cost in respect of the share
options granted on 22 May 2009 of HK$4,284,000 and 21
April 2011 of HK$633,000 were recognised in profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December
2011 respectively with the corresponding credit to the share
option reserve. No liabilities were recognised as these were

all equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

31.

Bk 5 S5 A i e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
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ey 32 AF 2 A B it (48)

RZZZNFRAT_BRZ-Z—F
MAZ+—BAEREzEREZ ATFED
B 49 & 75 #4,284,0007T I 78 #633,000
TEBR—EZBIEEMAEMANEL B
RA—EAPREERAEE - UTRA

RETEEREAFLE 2 BRE:
REBE —E——F —EENF
MA-+—8A #AA=-t+=H
TEE #0395 AH0.3107T
B R 1R 118.85% 122.09%
EREERTH 105 10
B & E i
SRR A = 2.67% 2.46%
EHTEREENI2ERTHELRERE
BEETFAmMET MERAVERAE
PRaER
R _ZEZANFRAZ-+ZBEZ

——imﬂ:+—a%&ﬁﬁk%2@g
R i X R B EE 9 Bl /58 6 4,284,0007T
K #%633,000LERDREE_TTAH
F+ZA=+—BHkR=ZE—F+=A
=S+ —HIEFEZESEPRRBILAEES
ABRERE BREBAX S R/URKRK
BEZBRONRR G B BEREE
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32. RESERVES 32. fafifh
Group rEE
The amount of the Group's reserves and the movements FEEREAFERBAFEZREBESE
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the BTN RT IR

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature of the reserves is as follows: mEIHEENAT
(a) Capital reserve of the Group (a) *EBZEXFE

Capital reserve of the Group represents: NEBZERNFERE:

(i)  the difference between the nominal value of () ARFBEETRAEESEA
share capital issued by the Company and the BMAEBZ2ZERARE
nominal value of the share capital and the share —NMN=FEEEHZRAE
premium accounts of those companies forming BERBEOEER2Z8E &
the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
in 1993; and

(i) the reduction in issued share capital arising from (i)  FEEBERAEREEITRA
the cancelling of paid up capital to the extent WL TR -FEBITR
of HK$0.09 on each share of HK$0.1 in issue in B2 BlREEEB01THH
2001. B #0.097T ©

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation (b) THEEZHBEEEMHFEE
reserve

Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve AfHErMBEESEGHRFERRE

comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value AHHECHBEEL Rt AT E

of available-for-sale financial assets and is dealt with in BENFREURBEMI3 N 2GR

accordance with the accounting policy in note 3.11. REE-
(c) Share option reserve (c) BREMRE

Share option reserve has been set up in accordance BREREBEREBEWIEII7TAE 2

with the accounting policy set out in note 3.17. BERTHER -
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32. RESERVES (continued) 32. fafi s (#H)
Company b /N
Share
Share Contributed option Accumulated

premium surplus reserve losses Total
R RE EaEs BRERE RABR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

(note)

(Bat)
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-ZF5-A-H 147,930 213,978 4,284 (140,193) 225,999
Loss for the year KEEER - - - (23,473) (23,473)

At 31 December 2010 and AZZ—TF

1 January 2011 TZA=+—8k
e 147,930 213,978 4,284 (163,666) 202,526
Loss for the year KEEER - - - (24,188) (24,188)
Share option granted B BRE (MH:E31)
(note 31) - - 633 - 633
Share option forfeited B R R (MeE31)
(note 31) - - (1,339) 1,339 -
At 31 December 2011 R-F——F
+-A=+—-"H 147,930 213,978 3,578 (186,515) 178,971
Note: B 5T
Contributed surplus of the Company represents: ARABZBEHBERIE:
(i) the difference between the underlying net tangible assets of () ARATMBERBARZHBERAE
the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the nominal FREARNTN LMEBSHRE B8
value of the shares issued by the Company at the time of the TRDEBECZE: &

group reorganisation referred to above; and

(i) the reduction in issued share capital arising from the (i) FHESRBRABHDBITRARD #
cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on each T -FEBETROZERE@ELE
share of HK$0.1 in issue in 2001. 0.17CH EIEE #0.097T
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33. DEFERRED TAX 33. JEHEFLIH
Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group REBREAFERBEFEHER

and movements during the current and prior years are as

follows:

MERERES ZFBWOT:

Group
rEH
Fair value
Accelerated  changes of
tax investment
depreciation properties Total
REMEZ
MEHEHRE LAFEESD a5
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T BT T
At 1 January 2010 RZE—FTF—H—H - 1,038 1,038
Amount charged to profit or loss REZP R 2 A - 6,055 6,055
At 31 December 2010 and RZZE—FF
1 January 2011 +:HE+—E|&
—T——%—Hf—H - 7,093 7,093
Amount charged to profit or loss RiBz=F b 2 KA 659 2,137 2,796
At 31 December 2011 R-ZZE——%F
+=A=+-—H 659 9,230 9,889

At 31 December 2011, the Group had tax losses of
approximately HK$204,963,000 (2010: HK$199,889,000).
No deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of
such tax losses as it is uncertain whether future taxable
profit will be available for utilising the tax losses. Under the
current tax legislation, the tax losses can be carried forward

indefinitely.

At the reporting date, the Company did not have any

significant deferred tax liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
AND COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
17(a)) under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.
At the reporting date, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows:

(a)

Bk 5 S5 A i e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

AL R A0 % PR SR I

EREHEA
AEBEREBELEMOZHEHERER
EYE (ME17() @ e 2 BEN
F—2=F KRS EH RIREA
MAFTZZ NAIBEHEZHEA - K
SEARATFHREEZ RERKIE
MEFRERWT

Group
rEE
2011 2010
—®-—-% —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within one year —F RN 5,712 6,099
In the second to fifth year inclusive ZFEERF
(EEMFBRIEEAN) 2,622 3,770
8,334 9,869

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. The leases run for an
initial period of one to three years, with options to
renew the lease terms at the expiry dates or at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
landlords/lessors. None of the leases include contingent

rentals.

(b)

ERAMEA

AEBRBEEROLHEERS
THRAEME -ZFHAOVL R
—ZE=F WAHEERERBHER
SERABET HEAXFEE
ZBESTEM ZEHAOMEST
AZAHD -
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
AND COMMITMENTS (continued)
(b) As lessee (continued)
At the reporting date, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases, in respect of rented office premises,

AR ARSE (H)

(b) EREBEA (&)
REBEBH RETAIRBELEHE
#oAEBEARCERLAZTYER
TN & B2 HL 2 R R AR E R

falling due as follows: g
Group
rEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Within one year —F RN 1,992 3,319
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FRERF
(BERMFREFEA) 575 2,567
2,567 5,886
Company /N

The Company did not have any significant operating lease

RABR®wE R Hﬂ*ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁéﬁi&?%ﬁ

arrangements and commitments at the reporting date (2010: WLl AR (ZS—FTF &) -
nil).
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BEARYE
Group
rER
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Commitments for the acquisition of WM  BE R
property, plant and equipment R I
— contracted for but not provided — BRI EREE 531 -

The Company does not have significant capital commitments
at the reporting date (2010: nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following significant transactions with related

parties during the year:

(a) Compensation of key management personnel
The directors are of the opinion that the key
management personnel are the directors of the

Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in

Bk 5 S5 A i e

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

36. BHEANLAS
%&iﬁé%%ﬁ%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁﬁZ%
Gapsh  FRAEEMEREALE
ﬂrmixx

(a) EEEBABZHMH
EERR FTEEEABINARR
CEERET& ‘Z%M‘\ﬁ,é*{&%
ZEHEFHB D BRI T 14(a) KKt

note 14(a) and certain highest paid employees whose

remunerations are set out in note 14(b).

(b) Operating lease charges

A 14(b) °

(b) FEHENER

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Rental expenses for a motor vehicle paid BN T RAAXEEZ
to: ek :
— Conba Management Consultant —EEEEBEHABRAR
Limited 210 185
— Complex Investment Limited —EMBREARAT 360 360
570 545

The operating lease charges are mutually agreed by the

Group and the contracting party.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the shareholder of
Conba Management Consultant Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, Mr. Tsang Chiu Ching and
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia, directors, are the directors of

Complex Investment Limited.
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37.

38.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS
At 31 December 2011, the Company had corporate
guarantees given to the banks to secure the loans granted
to certain subsidiaries of the Company. Under these
corporate guarantees, the Company would be liable to
pay the banks if the banks are unable to recover the
loans granted to these subsidiaries. The total outstanding
balance of these bank loans at the reporting date was
approximately HK$61,256,000 (2010: HK$89,348,000) and
this represented the Company’s maximum exposure under
the guarantee contracts. No provision for the Company's
obligation under the guarantee contracts has been made as
the directors considered that default risk is largely covered
by the underlying securities of properties with carrying
amount of HK$216,922,000 as at 31 December 2011
(2010: HK$257,185,000) and accordingly, it is not probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under the

guarantee contracts.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, mainly
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate
risk and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group's overall risk management focuses on unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
applied by the Group to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The Group currently does not have written risk
management policies and guidelines. However, the board
of directors meets periodically and cooperates closely with
key management to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage and monitor financial risks exposures in a timely and

effective manner.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. M5 B A B e o fE R R

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)

(continued)

38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities BIHMBEEREEZER
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the REERARAGRRE QD ®#R
Company'’s financial assets and liabilities recognised ZHBEERBGBZEAES A
at the reporting date are categorised as follows. T -E@YBIA BN
See notes 3.11 and 3.18 for explanations on how BHARBZFE 2EWFE3 IR
the category of financial instruments affects their 3.18 °

subsequent measurement.

(i) Financial assets (i) MKEE
Group
AEH
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHHEZHEEE 16,261 21,399

Financial assets at fair value through &2 FEYIER LR EEE

profit or loss RREZUBEE 3,938 5,170
Loans and receivables: B R ERERK

— Loans receivables —EWE R 41,952 42,028

— Trade and other receivables — & 2 K H R UK AR 3R 14,203 9,319
— Trust bank balances held on —REFPHA ZETRTT

behalf of customers 4R 1,134 881

— Cash and cash equivalents —HekBeEEY 106,612 89,064

184,100 167,861
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. B4 I b A B J P E T R
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(continued)
38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities BIMBEEREEZER (&)
(continued)
(i) Financial assets (continued) (i) MKEE (&)
Company
¥ NN
2011 2010
—E——F —E-LF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT I
Loans and receivables: B R EWARR
— Other receivables — Hofth i Y BR SR 240 239
— Amounts due from subsidiaries — R B A B FRIR 140,556 149,744
- Cash and cash equivalents -ReRkBESEEY 83,299 70,742
224,095 220,725
(ii) Financial liabilities (i) BKEE
Group
REH
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ST I
Financial liabilities measured at BEHERAFTE 2
amortised cost: WBaE:
— Trade and other payables —EERHMERNERR 18,274 21,817
— Bank borrowings (secured) —HRITEE (BEM) 61,256 89,348
- Obligations under finance leases  — &l & fH 49 & I 46 152
79,576 111,317
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. M5 B A B e o fE R R
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(continued)
38.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities BIMBEEREEZER (&)
(continued)
(ii) Financial liabilities (continued) (i) MBEE (&)
Company
¥ NN
2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Financial liabilities measured at REHEAATEZ
amortised cost: MgaE:
— Amounts due to subsidiaries —FERTFT B R RIFRIE 35,047 11,500
— Other payables and accruals — H fth B 5 BR % FE BT
IR 686 716
35,733 12,216
38.2 Foreign currency risk 38.2 /M LB
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value INERBRIEI I T A 2 A AR K
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will KReREFEAEREBMEE 2
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange [RLB o AN 26 ATE - ANEE KA
rates. The Group’s and the Company's exposures to NAEIZINERBREZRAREFR
currency risk arise from its deposits placed in banks, RIRIT2HEF EFZUEERA
which are primarily denominated in HK$ and RMB as REFGE BRAEBEAQRE
set out in note 26. The Group and the Company have EHERBEE REOEERSHH
no other significant foreign currency risk due to limited DWABHEREE BINEZSE
foreign currency transactions as the Group and the (PSS S NN b S
Company mainly operate in Hong Kong with majority Hh B RN R B o

of the business transactions being denominated and
settled in HKS.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(continued)
38.2 Foreign currency risk (continued)
Summary of exposure
Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into Hong Kong dollars at the

closing rates, are as follows:

38. o2 L b A B R A P R
(%)

38.2 HhEE R B ()

2 B 6 2=
MONESHEZ B EERABIK
MEXBERBEEZBERET

The Group

rEE
2011 2010
2% —TFF
RMB RMB
AR AR
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 24,907 2,986

The Company

¥ NN
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-EF
RMB RMB
AR AR
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bank balances and cash RIT&ER MRS 24,888 2,959

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of
the Group’s and the Company’s result and equity
in regards to a 5% (2010: 10%) appreciation in
the foreign currencies against the Group entities’
functional currencies. The 5% (2010: 10%) is the rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible change

in foreign exchange rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. M5 B A B e o fE R R

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)

(continued)

38.2 Foreign currency risk (continued) 38.2 /M BE (4E)
Sensitivity analysis (continued) BRESN (&)
The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s and the REBRARBRJERRFAZ 2
Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end HMNEE [ B 2 BURKE AT TH AR 15 28 B
of the reporting period has been determined based on HFEERBEREEXRRFEFRN—EH
the assumed percentage changes in foreign currency RIFZINBERBREDEHLE
exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the 7E °

financial year and held constant throughout the year.

The Group
rEE
Increase in profit for
the year and decrease

in accumulated losses

REEFFIG MR
Rt EBEBERD
2011 2010
2% i
RMB RMB
AR AR
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
5% (2010: 10%) appreciation ARBEHES%

in RMB (ZZE—ZF:10%) 1,245 299
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(continued)

38.2 Foreign currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

38.

S 25 DL o A B e P R
(%)

38.2 HhEE R B ()
BEEDIN (E)

The Company
AAFE
Decrease in loss for
the year and

accumulated losses

TEEBER

REtEBRRD
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-ZF
RMB RMB
AR AR
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

5% (2010: 10%) appreciation ARBEFHES%

in RMB (ZZE—FF:10%) 1,244 296

A 5% depreciation in the foreign currencies against the
group entities” functional currencies would have the
same magnitude on the Group's and the Company’s

result for the year and equity but of opposite effect.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. M5 M B A B K o P AR

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)

(continued)

38.3 Interest rate risk 38.3 FlEE &
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value MEREDERNVBIE 2 ATE
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate IR E KA TSR K E) i
because of changes in market interest rates. The By Bk AKE T 2 Fl K
Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest AR TFEETAEE L ED
rates relates primarily to the Group's bank borrowings FIEBITEE - NEBIR KB ET
with floating interest rates. The Group currently does AN ZR BRI - AT - EFERF
not have any interest rate hedging policy. However, the REFHFN TEERNEREZE
directors monitor interest rate change exposure and HHEBRMEESY.

will consider hedging significant interest rate change

exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a TRITRFAE H A EEUREE T
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all g mMAEHBRAEAELZEHER
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit for T AEBEZERFRE N RER (B
the year and equity (through the impact on floating BTN ERETEEZCEE)Y
rate bank borrowings). B GURE -

Group

rEH

Decrease in profit for
the year and increase
in accumulated losses

EEEBRAED R
RHItEBRE M
2011 2010
—E——fF —ZE-ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Increase in basis points (“bp”) B2 ([E2] )80
+100 bp +100E 2L (613) (893)
A decrease in 100 bp in the interest rates, with all R RO A 1005 26 i H b & 8RR IF
other variables held constant, would have the same T BEHAEBNARRAFEE
magnitude on the Group’s and the Company’s result CEE NS ERERER M
for the year and equity but of opposite effect. HrRzg2-
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT % B i B B A EEL R 2
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(continued)

38.4 Equity price risk 384 REEKEK

Equity price risk relates to the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the level of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to change in market
prices of listed equity securities in respect of its
investments in listed equity securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at

fair value through profit and loss.

The directors manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group is not exposed to

commodity price risk.

At 31 December 2011, if the quoted market price
for the available-for-sale investments had been 10%
(2010: 10%) higher/lower while all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s equity will increase/
decrease by approximately HK$1,626,000 (2010:
HK$2,140,000).

Whereas, if the quoted market price for listed
equity securities classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit and loss had been 10% (2010:
10%) higher/lower with all other variables remain
unchanged, the Group’s profit for the year and equity
would increase/decrease by HK$394,000 (2010:
HK$517,000) whereas the Group's accumulated losses

would decrease/increase by the same amount.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT % B i B B A EEL R 2
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(continued)

38.5 Credit risk 38.5 (=B A K

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group. The Group
minimises its exposure to the credit risk by rigorously
selecting the counterparties, performing ongoing
credit evaluation on the financial conditions of its
debtors and tightly monitoring the ageing of the
receivables. Follow-up actions are taken in case of
overdue balances. In addition, management reviews
the recoverable amount of the receivables individually
or collectively at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. At the reporting date, the credit risk on loan
receivables has a concentration risk, as HK$40,000,000
or 95% of the Group's loan receivables are due from

two borrowers.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-

ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The credit policy has been followed by the Group since
prior years and is considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a

desirable level.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS

(continued)
38.6 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of liquidity
risk, the directors monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations, investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and investing activities and from fund

raising activities such as rights issue.

At the reporting date, the maturity profile of the
Group’s and the Company's financial liabilities based

on contractual undiscounted cash flows is as follows:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. M5 M B A B K o P AR
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(continued)
38.6 Liquidity risk (continued) 386 mEBELRE (&)
Group
r5H
Total
contractual Total
Within In2to More than undiscounted carrying
On demand 1 year 5 years 5years  cash flows amount
L)
RERKE AUERRE
#iE -£R —Znf BBLE REAE AREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT  BEETL  ARTR BEETT A%t BETx

At 31 December 2011 RZB-—-%
+=A=t-8
Trade and other payables EEREMEMNER - 18,274 - - 18,274 18,274

Bank borrowings including RITEE (BRREX
those contain a repaymenton  EEEHZRITEER)

demand clause (note) (B3E) 54,843 - - - 54,843 54,843
Other bank borrowings HRITIEE - 768 3,072 3,760 7,600 6,413
Obligations under finance leases B & 7 4] & - 47 - - 47 46

54,843 19,089 3,072 3,760 80,764 79,576
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-Z2E+ZA
=+-8
Trade and other payables EERAMEMER - 21,817 - - 21,817 21,817

Bank borrowings including RITEE (REREX
those contain a repayment on  EEEF 2 RITEE)

demand clause (note) () 82,402 - - - 82,402 82,402
Other bank borrowings HRITiEE - 768 3,012 4,527 8,367 6,946
Obligations under finance leases B & 7 4] & - 114 47 - 161 152

82,402 22,699 3,19 4,527 112,747 111,317
Note: B 5
For term loans which contain a repayment on demand clause HRNRBERITAZERBEITE 2 IRERK
which can be exercised at the bank's sole discretion, the EERRZEHER Lo TRES
analysis above shows the cash outflow based on the earliest AIAB N & F B (Eﬂfﬁ%fﬂiﬁ 1718
period in which the entity can be required to pay, that is if the HEGEEERNZRABEEER) 25
lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the RentE-

loans with immediate effect.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. M5 M B A B K o P AR
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(continued)
38.6 Liquidity risk (continued) 386 mBESREM (&)
Company
NG|
Total
contractual Total
Within In2to  More than undiscounted carrying
On demand 1 year 5 years 5years  cash flows amount
CL
RERKE AUERRE
BE —FR “E0f BELF RELH AREE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000
AETT  BETL  ARTR BEETT A%t BETx

At 31 December 2011 R-B--%
+=A=t+-A
Amount due to a subsidiary ER—RIBARFE 35,047 - - - 35,047 35,047
Other payables and accrual H R
JEEF TR 686 - - - 686 686
35,733 - - - 35,733 35,733
Financial guarantees issued ~ © HEHBER
Maximum amount quaranteed ~ HEZRELHE 61,256 - - - - 61,256
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-BF
+=A=t+-8
Amount due to a subsidiary JEfT — M B 2 RIFIE 11,500 - - - 11,500 11,500
Other payables and accrual A R R
[t 5R 716 - - - 716 716
12,216 - - - 12,216 12,216
Financial guarantees issued B BB BER
Maximum amount quaranteed ~ REZREHE 89,348 - - - - 89,348
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS

(continued)
38.6 Liquidity risk (continued)

S 25 DL o A B e P R

(#)

3.6 BN EEREK (&)

The table that follows summaries the maturity
analysis of term loans with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set
out in the loan agreements. The amounts include
interest payments computed using contractual rates.
As a result, these amounts were greater than the
amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band
in the maturity analysis above. Taking into account
the Group's financial position, the directors do not
consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such term loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set

out in the loan agreements.

TREAM BIREREEEKZTE
HEFIRER M HEET ZHEEER
RHZBMBED T -%ESEER
BANNERFEZFEFR - Bitt -
ZETHER LB BE O [
R KHBEAREZ B/ -
ERAKBEZHBRR EERS
RITAARABETTEE RIS Z KA
BER - BEEHREXFEHERS
RERGHEAE 2R EERAME
g

Group
AEE

Maturity analysis - term loan subject to repayment on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments

WEREREBRARZEHEREREBRAB2EMA D,

Total
contractual
undiscounted Total
Within In2to  More than cash carrying
1 year 5 years 5 years outflows amount
BHRRER
—FR ZELf BELF RERLAE BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BET T BETT
31 December 2011 e
+=ZA=+-H 5,178 20,713 35,666 61,557 54,843
31 December 2010 —E-FF
+-A=+—"H 6,564 26,257 59,026 91,847 82,402
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. M5 B A B e 8 P E R B
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(continued)
38.7 Fair values 38.7 A¥{E
The carrying values of the Group's current financial HRZEesB T AR E R
assets and liabilities stated at amortised costs closely BE AR EIREHEKARZS 2R
approximate their fair values because of the immediate PBUBEERABRCREEREAR
or short-term maturity of these financial instruments. FEEE - FRDUBEEREE
The fair values of non-current financial assets and ZRAVE(TERERREBELER
liabilities, determined by discounting the expected LA SHEPN AT BR 2 7% 5 T AR 7]
future cash flows using rates currently available for BZNEMBEHAEREREE
instruments on similar terms, stated at amortised E)EHEHEBETEERER
costs are not materially different from their carrying
amounts.
38.8 Fair value measurements recognised in the 38.8 REIBEMRRER 2 A TEFTE
statement of financial position
The following table presents financial assets measured TREVRIERFEZRE B35k
at fair value in the statement of financial position in MEABRATFEFECVBEE-
accordance with the fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy R BEREBEFENFVBEERE
groups financial assets into three levels based on BZAVEMEAZEEZHAZNA
the relative reliability of significant inputs used in AT EM S Hﬁﬁé%&ﬁi\ &)
measuring the fair value of these financial assets and REBzEN R FERED BN
liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the following TEE:
levels:
- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active - B1E-MHREERAGBNE
markets for identical assets and liabilities; BTS2 ME (RECFHE)
- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included - BB - MEEXABEMEE
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or (BB s (B ERE
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly PABRzHA (TBES
(i.e. derived from prices); and EBFRREZ®HRE) &
—  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that — B3 -UWIEBBEAIHERZT
are not based on observable market data GEBEMEMEEXAE R
(unobservable inputs). AN(EFEBERZBHA) -
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the MBEERERERACATESE
financial asset is categorised in its entirety is based on BAZER BEREAFET=Z
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair BEEERBEBZE L HKEBRENE
value measurement. JE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BE_F—— L H=EA—HIFEE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. %5 b A B N A AR B
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(continued)
38.8 Fair value measurements recognised in the 38.8 R BEMRRER 2 A FETE
statement of financial position (continued) (%)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the R BRRERNIEZRFEFTFEZH
statement of financial position are grouped into the BEEDEDABUTZAFEESE
fair value hierarchy as follows: 1
Group
rEH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E H2E E3E #Et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARETT ABTrT AT ABTE

As 31 December 2011 R=B——F
+=A=+—H
Financial assets at fair ERAFEIER
value through profit RIBERFEE
or loss AR 3,938 - - 3,938
Available-for-sale financial ~ A[fft & ~
assets MBEE 16,261 - - 16,261
Net fair values FHAF(E 20,199 - - 20,199
Group
rEE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1E H2E %3E et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T ok v
As 31 December 2010 RZE—TF
+-A=+—H
Financial assets at fair BEAFEIERER
value through profit or e AR R IR
loss ZUHBEE 5,170 - - 5,170
Available-for-sale financial ®JftH & 2
assets W& E 21,399 - - 21,399
Net fair values FAEE 26,569 - - 26,569
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B W5 A B

for the year ended 31 December 2011
BEZF——FE A=A —HILFE

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT % B i B B A EEL R 2

160

AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

(continued)

38.8 Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position (continued)
There have been no transfers between level 1 and level
2 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used for
the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged
compared to the previous reporting periods.

The Group's financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and available-for-sale financial assets are listed
equity securities denominated in HK$. Fair values have
been determined by reference to their quoted bid
prices at the reporting date.

39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

(a) to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders;

(b)  to support the Group's stability and growth; and

(c)  to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group. The Group currently does
not adopt any formal dividend policy.

Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as
at 31 December 2011 amounted to approximately
HK$337,806,000 (2010: HK$333,771,000), which the
management considers as satisfactory having considered
the projected capital expenditures and the forecast strategic
investment opportunities.
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38.8 R BMRNKRER 2 A FETE
(&)
REEHRE FIERFE2E 2R
mE -

Rt &8 R FE 2 7k KRG E R
ﬁu&zﬁ¢%ﬁ@&1ﬂw%

REBZRAFENNEREERBREE
HEEMEEERAIHHEENS
BERUNABKEINE L ETRAFE
H-RNTFEDNSEEBEEIHFNRE
HEIFf o BEAEMEE -

39. B AE B

AEEEREAZBER:

(a) REASEFESE 26 n FH
BELEREREMA N ATRE
0] 5% K F) 2%

(b)) XBAEBEZBEMER: K

(0 RIMBASEZEAREEEDREMHR

REBEG K F B E A BREEITRE &
R ARREEEARERKREBR:
WERIAEERRRZEST K - AE
] 35 B 3 4 S AT IE VAR BB R o

ERERERAABEAEE ZER R
T——F+-ZA=+—H BELXLHEHA
5 #337,806,0007T (=2 — T F : B
333,771,0000) - KR EEHED Z &
Bz ERRY RTBHARRERERS
WRRBERLT AMEZMR -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
SR 5 4 2

A summary of the results, and the assets and liabilities of the NTAAEERBENEAVBREE2EE &
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the ERBEHME  IHEEAC T 2 KEZYH
published audited financial statements, is set out below. This MR- ABMEN TBRNEEZM B RE 2 — 3

summary does not form part of the audited financial statements. (I
RESULTS E 3

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T-HLEE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
—ETEF ZTTN\F ZTTNEF ZT-TF Z¥--F
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS$'000
ARETT  ARTT  ERETT  AEETIT  B%Tn

(Restated)

(e=5)
Revenue &= 69,703 23,532 22,748 27,709 27,456
Profit/(Loss) for the year AEERF/ (EE) 5,998 88,244 (7,689) 34,568 8,540

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES GEMAME

As at 31 December
R+=A=+—-H
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
T+ F ZZTENF —ZTTNF _—ZT-ZTF ZB——-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BT  BETT BB T  B¥Tx

Total assets BEE 218,072 346,919 411,553 454,384 429,474
Total liabilities BEE (11,089) (51,652) (111,681) (120,613) (91,668)
Shareholders’ funds BERES 206,983 295,267 299,872 333,771 337,806
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BB PR wE N
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES S a<E/ES
Percentage
of interest
attributable
Description Use Nature Gross floor to the Group
rEEEN
#H1E A& HE BEER EEEOL
EM Macau, Avenida de Lopo Sarmento Commercial Medium term 348.75 sq.ft. 100%
de Carvalho, N°.44, leasehold
San Kin Yip Com. Center,
Res-do-chao K
P E 7R fn K55 BR445R EES hEEE 348.75F 77 R 100%
MEEEEF DL
Kt &8
P12-07, P12-08 and P12-09 Macau Commercial Medium term 7,021 sq.ft. 100%
Landmark, Alameda Dr. Carlos leasehold
D'Assumpcao Nos 565-605-C,
Rua De Xangai Nos 38-78-B,
Avenida da Amizade Nos 519-597,
Macau
RPIR ARG %#519-5975% - [HES HREIFEE 7,021 5 R 100%
FBE75538-78-B55% -
R X 4 B %5 8565-605-CHf -
RPIE M ESP12-07
P12-08 2 P12-09
Nos. 105-107 Wing Lok Street, Commercial Long term 13,598.72 sq.ft. 100%
Sheung Wan (Mingle Place), leasehold
and the remaining Portion of
Marine Lot Nos. 135 and 136
EERKEAE105-1075% (BEEF) R EES RHEE 13,598.72F 100%

MRS 135 % 51365 4 ER N
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

B VIR
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES S a<E/ES
Percentage
of interest
attributable
Description Use Nature Gross floor to the Group
rEBENL
3 Az HE BEEE EZAEDL
Flat H, 20/F, Heng Shan Mansion, Residential Long term 691 sq.ft. 100%
Kao Shan Terrace, leasehold
No. 19 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
FEHROBR M T= RHHEE 691F 77 R 100%
KEWB195%
=LA ELRE
20 H=E
Flat E, 27/F, Pine Mansion, Residential Long term 1,029 sq.ft. 100%
Harbour View Gardens, leasehold
No. 26 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
FEHROBAE E= RHEE 1,029F 5 R 100%
K& E2655
BREEBTIRE
271BEE
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PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BRI

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES BREY*E

Percentage

of interest

attributable

Description Use Nature Gross floor to the Group
rEBENL

3 Az HE BEEE EZED

Flat B, 10/F, Residential Long term 902 sq.ft. 100%
Kai Tien Mansion, leasehold
Horizon Gardens,
No. 17 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
FEHROBAE E= RHHEE 902F 7R 100%
AN EETHR
BRIEERCKE
1012B=

Flat F, 23/F, Residential Long term 675 sq.ft. 100%
Loong Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,
No. 21 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
FEHROBRE M T= RHHEE 675F 7R 100%
KEWE215
SLEREILE
2318F=
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